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CHARACTERISTICS OF THE GROWTH ENTERPRISE MARKET (“GEM”) OF
THE STOCK EXCHANGE OF HONG KONG LIMITED (THE “STOCK EXCHANGE”)

GEM has been established as a market designed to accommodate companies to which a high investment risk may be
attached. In particular, companies may list on GEM with neither a track record of profitability nor any obligation to
forecast future profitability. Furthermore, there may be risks arising out of the emerging nature of companies listed on
GEM and the business sectors or countries in which the companies operate. Prospective investors should be aware of the
potential risks of investing in such companies and should make the decision to invest only after due and careful
consideration. The greater risk profile and other characteristics of GEM mean that it is a market more suited to professional
and other sophisticated investors.

Given the emerging nature of companies listed on GEM, there is a risk that securities traded on GEM may be more
susceptible to high market volatility than securities traded on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange and no assurance is
given that there will be a liquid market in the securities traded on GEM. The principal means of information dissemination
on GEM is publication on the Internet website operated by the Stock Exchange. Listed companies are not generally
required to issue paid announcements in gazetted newspapers. Accordingly, prospective investors should note that they
need to have access to the GEM website in order to obtain up-to-date information on GEM-listed issuers.

The Stock Exchange takes no responsibility for the contents of this report, makes no representation as to its
accuracy or completeness and expressly disclaims any liability whatsoever for any loss howsoever arising from or in
reliance upon the whole or any part of the contents of this report.

This report, for which the Directors of VENTUREPHARM LABORATORIES LIMITED collectively and individually
accept full responsibility, includes particulars given in compliance with Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on
GEM for the purpose of giving information with regard to VENTUREPHARM LABORATORIES LIMITED. The Directors
of VENTUREPHARM LABORATORIES LIMITED, having made all reasonable enquiries, confirm that, to the best of
their knowledge and belief: (i) the information contained in this report is accurate and complete in all material
respects and not misleading; (ii) there are no other matters the omission of which would make any statement in this
report misleading; and (iii) all opinions expressed in this report have been arrived at after due and careful consideration
and are founded on bases and assumptions that are fair and reasonable.
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CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT
EFRERSE

Dear Shareholders,

With the mission of becoming a world class pharmaceutical
power house, | am proud to announce that the Company has
successfully accomplished its business transformation plan
in 3 years, steering towards a global full service company.
The new integrated service business model allows the
Company to enjoy service profits not only from R&D but also
from contract manufacturing and contract commercialization.

The year 2006 was challenging for the Chinese pharmaceutical
industry, with a number of important events and policies
affecting the industry dramatically, including SFDA changes,
Medicare reform, anti-bribery policy and price cutting. Despite
of these, the employees and shareholders can be proud of
the Company’s accomplishments in 2006: the Company
maintained its leading position in new drug application, and
VPS remained to be the largest CRO in China in terms of
completed and undergoing clinical trials, demonstrating that
we are taking the right steps to create and sustain value.

FINANCIAL REVIEW

The Company’s performance during the year was impacted
primarily by the severe rectification policies and regulations
of the Chinese regulatory authorities, which put adverse
pressures on the R&D activities of Chinese pharmaceutical
companies temporarily. However, despite this, we achieved
dramatic business growth and brand building in this year,
reflecting our commitment to fortify our existing leadership in
R&D market.
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The market was responsive to our progress. At the heart of
continued growth were the maturation of our business model
and customer recognition. Revenues increased to
RMB57,052,000 in 2006, a 35.3% increase over 2005, and
triple the reported average sector growth rate for 2006. The
net profits attributable to equity shareholders increased to
RMB15,563,000, up 175.7% from 2005. Basic earnings per
share for 2006 were RMB0.0432, a 175.2% improvement
over the RMBO0.0157 reported for 2005. Share price up 19.1%
at year-end versus year-end 2005.

In short, our stellar financial results in 2006 were the result of
a relentless focus on People, Process and Clients platform
for consistently delivering operational and service excellence
for our clients.

BUSINESS REVIEW

The integrated service business model enables the Company
to bring drug candidates from pre-clinical stages through to
clinical trials, and ultimately, commercialization. In addition, it
also offers the Company the strength and flexibility to focus
on one or two sectors of the value chain at a time, thus maximizing
the business opportunities. The business achievement has

demonstrated that our strategy is working.
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Research & Development MERERE

VPS, the clinical research business unit of the Company,
has become China’s leading clinical research organization
(CRO)

VPS is dedicated to excellence by providing both
international and domestic clients with CRO services in
the areas of bio-analysis, pre-clinical and all phases of
clinical studies. VPS has completed over 86 projects
covering 13 therapeutic areas, and there are more than
50 on-going trials, including 4 new drugs. The most
experienced areas are CNS, Cardiovascular and
Antibiotics. No other CRO in China can offer customers
the breadth of services and expertise.

VPS is one of the first CRO to adopt Good Clinical
Practice (GCP) in China. It is also one of the most
prestigious CRO in traditional Chinese medicine. While
maintaining the leading position in CRO in China, VPS is
now actively exploring the overseas market of CRO
outsourcing service. VPS is committed to providing the
international quality services with better local price to
pharmaceutical and biotech clients.

In order to meet the global booming demand for clinical
research outsourcing, VPS plans to quickly expand the
business through both self-development and M&A,
supported by the capital market. To establish strategic
alliance with large pharmaceutical and biotech companies
is one of the priorities as it can provide sustainable growth
for the company.
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2. Continue adding new products to the Company’s rich

product pipeline through pharmaceutical development
service (PDS)

Our firm commitment to R&D is critical to our long-term
success in the pharmaceutical industry.

The founding of Hainan Sinican Research Institute has
expanded our R&D capabilities. The success of new
research lab is evidenced by the several filings of new
products in both API (Active Pharmaceutical Ingredient)
and dosages. It is building a new drug discovery platform
from natural products, expanding the Company’s product
line that covers both synthetic chemical drugs and those
made from natural products.

Global Market Penetration

Besieged by ever-increasing R&D cost pressures on new
drug discovery and development, shorter product life
cycles and numerous regulatory challenges in the West,
global pharmas prefer outsourcing to low-cost, developing
countries rather than persisting with expensive R&D efforts
in the West. To establish a professional global outsourcing
market is a key solution to dealing with the challenges.

To capitalize on this exciting and compelling opportunity,
the Company has strengthened the efforts of the Global
Business Development Division, which targets oversea
pharmaceutical companies by providing fully integrated
pharmaceutical services that include PDS (Pharmaceutical
Development Service), APl (Active Pharmaceutical
Ingredient), CRS (Contract Research Service), RAS
(Regulatory Affairs Service), CMS (Contract Manufacturing
Service) and CSS (Contract Sales Service).

We have signed contracts with overseas pharmaceutical
companies for ANDA in US, and contracts in formulation/

API technologies, clinical trial services.
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Contract Manufacturing Services

With the implementation of the Company’s strategy and the
infrastructure improvements that have been put into place,
the Company entered into strategic alliances with 7 contract
manufacturing organizations which are under the Company’s
total quality control, laying solid foundation for our Contract
Commercialization Services.

Contract Commercialization Services

The Company has developed a royalty business model to
promote the commercialization of products. It deploys a
strategy that focuses on certain therapeutic areas, allowing
us to fully take advantage of the most valuable resources.
Currently, CNS and dermatology therapeutic products are
the leading products promoted to the franchised partners or
agents. In this way, the Company is competing in the market

with a group of products, rather a single product.

Overall, the Company stays committed to move up the
pharmaceutical value chain, in order to pursue its vision of

being a global pharmaceutical service provider.
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SCALING UP OPERATIONS

The Company has accelerated its internal initiatives on cost
optimization and productivity enhancement. The company has
realigned and strengthened its business units, and is actively
pursuing various options to augment its global operations.
The Company has also decided to pursue a more actively
policy of forging both business and research alliances, so
that risks and rewards can be shared. In-licensing, co-
marketing as well as research collaborations in new drug
discovery, are some of the areas which are being pursued
actively.

PEOPLE FOCUS

The Company’s human resources are its most import assets.
It is the people, who by their robust professionalism, ethical
commitment and devotion to duty, have been adding value
to the Company in the years gone by, and continue to do so
with zeal and tenacity. We are making sincere efforts to create
an environment in which our people can feel motivated and
perform to their best potential. We continue to pursue

individual training and career planning efforts.
OPPORTUNITIES FOR GROWTH

The global pharmaceutical industry is now facing challenges
resulting from the increasing cost of R&D and loss of sales to
generics due to the best-selling blockbuster drugs going off
patent. Outsourcing has become one of the most favored
strategies being adopted globally.
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China is ranked the top clinical market outside the US. The
Company’s commitment to quality, efficiency and service
innovation fit the business model of R&D and manufacturing
outsourcing market as we have won many new businesses
that are reflected in our steady growth in backlog.

The key to our sustained performance is alignment with
customer needs. Our customers are increasingly looking for
providers in response to demand for new therapies, increased
complexity of clinical programs, shrinking patent exclusivity
and the mandate for more post-marketing safety trials to

study long-term effects of already-approved medicines.

In order to pursue its global vision and achieve size and
scale of operations, it is imperative for the Company to expand
its global footprint. To evaluate opportunities for acquisition
of pharmaceutical assets, which, in addition to building size
and scale, can expand the Company’s therapeutic width by
entering into new segments which are not already a part of
the Company’s portfolio. This will also strengthen the existing

therapeutic areas.

To complement our geographic expansion strategy, we are
also looking to further strengthen our service delivery through
acquisition that are adjacent to the Phase I|-IV space or
complementary to our growth plan. Areas under review include
additional Phase | and Traditional Chinese Medicine research
capabilities in mainland China, and Phase Il and Phase Il
research centers in and outside mainland China.

The Company is well placed to capitalize on the changing
scenario due to its inherent strengths. Our focus will remain
on our corporate imperatives: to drive growth and profitability,
to focus on our customer and build our brand, to maximize
quality and increase capability and to develop talent and

reward performance.
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PROMISING FUTURE

Caring for people’s health is an industry of the future. As we
progress into 2007, we see a world of new opportunities. We
believe our 2006 results provide a springboard to future
growth and opportunity. Our ongoing efforts to strategically
integrate our People, Process and Clients initiatives will
continue to be the foundation of our strategy for the rest of
this decade.

Based on our strong fundamentals of innovation,
entrepreneurship and aggressive marketing skills, we are
determined to capitalize upon them and remain committed to
enhancing shareholder value, as we actively pursue our
strategy of growth through both organic and inorganic means.
The Chinese pharmaceutical industry is experiencing
consolidation amongst key players, a trend which is expected
to gain momentum in the future.

We also see the market demand for global drug development
services to be more encouraging than at any time in recent
memory. Both pharmaceutical and biotechnology companies
have an unprecedented need for a trusted outsourcing
partner. With the various initiatives underway and the new
product launches planned for 2007, the Company should be
able to record an improved performance in 2007.

Armed with your support and driven by the passion of the
organization and commitment of its people, | remain confident
that we will be at the forefront in capitalizing upon the global
outsourcing opportunity as it unfolds. While striving
unceasingly to exercise strong leadership in the industry in
China, we remain firmly committed to unlocking shareholder
value through the delivery of high quality service solutions.
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FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS
%@ E

Year ended 31 December
BE+=-A=1+—HLEE

2006 2005
—EENE —ETRF
RMB RMB
AR T AR¥TT
Results e

Revenue W 2= 57,052,000 42,157,000
Profit for the year F N Al 15,598,000 5,516,000

Assets and Liabilities EERERE
Total Assets BB E 141,045,000 119,888,000
Total Liabilities wEE 18,909,000 13,490,000
Shareholders’ equity B% 2R RE 25 122,136,000 106,398,000

Revenue by Business Services (RMB’000)
RE¥RKE s z2Wam AEEFT)

2006 susnns W7

Royalty income '
TR A

1,349
25

1,322
1,022

Import registration services ] 351

# M RS

CRS 14,035
R R 9% R 75 26,007
PDS 13,434
BYRERY
Transfer of technology r 11,666
BT ® 5,853

23,445
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
EHEES @RS

1.

OPERATING RESULTS

Financial Review

Results

The Group organized into full services business models
that cover the entire gamut of pharmaceutical chain while
maintaining the leading position on R&D sector. For the
year ended 31 December 2006, consolidated turnover
increased approximately 35.3% or from RMB42,157,000
to RMB57,052,000, which includes approximately
RMB29,298,000 deriving from technology transfer and
contracted pharmaceutical development services and
approximately RMB27,754,000 deriving from clinical
research services and other business activities. The
increase in turnover was primarily from clinical research
services (“CRS”).

The turnover analysis of venturepharm for the year 2006
has clearly demonstrated the successful transition of
Venturepharm from a company, which has been engaging
R&D and technology transfer only, into a fully integrated
pharmaceutical services company, which dedicated to

R&D, services, manufacturing and sales altogether.

Unit 000 / RMB
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The Group’s overall gross profit margin was 56.6% for
the year under review compared with that of 52.3% for
the last year.

Turnover contribution from six lines of services of the
Group:

Revenue Breakdown for year 2006
—EERFRFEE S
Unit:’000/RMB
T/ ARE

Royalty income

FRFRMA
Import registration services 2%
# O AR
0%

CRS
HR IR B 55 RS
46%

API
BB
1%

Transfer of technology
TR
10%

PDS
Rkt
41%

General and administrative expenses increased by 6.9%
to approximately RMB17,542,000. Other revenue
increased by 393.9% to approximately RMB5,631,000.

For the period ended 31 December 2006, the Group
recorded a profit attributable to shareholders of
approximately RMB15,563,000, representing an increase
of 175.7% as compared to that of approximately
RMB5,644,000 for last year. Basic earnings per share of
4.32 cents, compared with 1.57 cents per share in

previous year.
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Liquidity, financial resources

During the year ended 31 December 2006, the Group
financed its operations mainly with its operating revenue,
internal resources and net proceeds from placement on
2003. As at 31 December 2006, the Group’s current
assets amounted to about RMB94,297,000 of which
approximately RMB10,221,000 (31 December 2005:
RMB9,161,000) was cash and bank deposits. The Group
had approximately RMB6,451,000 (31 December 2005:
RMB3,000,000) outstanding bank overdrafts pledged by
financial assets of RMB19,248,000 (31 December 2005
restated: RMB19,698,000) and has no borrowings stated
at fixed interest rates (31 December 2005: Nil).

The debt ratio (defined as total liabilities over total assets)
of the Group as at 31 December 2006 was approximately
13.4% (81 December 2005: approximately 11.3%). The
financial leverage index for both year 2006 and 2005
was over 1, which indicated a sound financial position of
the Group.

Capital Structure

There has not been any change to the capital structure
of the Company since that date.

Significant Investment
The Company invested its surplus fund through its
principal bank in investment grade target investment

bonds which was RMB19,248,000.

Material Acquisitions and Disposals of Subsidiaries and
Affiliated Companies

There were no material acquisitions and disposals of
subsidiaries and affiliated companies during the year.
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Comments on Segmental Information

No geographical segment analysis is presented as all
assets and operations of the Group for the periods are
located in the PRC. No business segment analysis is
presented as all operations of the Group for the periods
are related to pharmaceutical research and development,
registration, application and testing.

Employees

The total number of employees in the Group was 281 as
at 31 December 2006 (2005: 281). The Group’s
remuneration policy is basically determined by the
performance of individual employees. In addition to
salaries and bonuses, employee benefits included medical
and pension contributions and share options schemes.

Charge on Assets

As at 31 December 2006, the Group pledged its
investment in securities of RMB19,248,000 as security
for the general banking overdraft granted to the Group.
(2005 restated: RMB19,698,000).

Future Plans for Material Investments or Capital Assets

Other than those disclosed in the Company’s prospectus
dated 30 June 2003, the Group does not have any other
plan for material investments or capital assets for the
coming year.

Capital Commitments

As at 31 December 2006, the Group had operating lease
commitments in respect of rented office premises of
approximately RMB17,192,000 (2005: RMB16,941,000).
Apart from that, as at 31 December 2006 and 2005, the
Group had no other significant capital commitment.
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Foreign Exchange Exposure

During the period under review, the Group’s transactions
were substantially denominated in Renminbi (“RMB”) and
about 11% of the cash and bank deposits were in either
Pound Sterling or United States (“US”) dollars. As the
exchange rate of RMB and US Dollars to HK Dollars is
fairly stable, the Directors are of the view that the Group’s
exposure to foreign currency exchange risk is limited and
hence, the Group closely monitors its foreign currency
exposure from time to time and will engage appropriate
hedging activities when needs arise.

Contingent Liabilities

As at 31 December 2006, the Group has a contingent
liability of RMB2 million of income tax liability (2005: Nil).

BUSINESS REVIEW

General

The Group is mainly engaged in the R&D of
pharmaceutical products in common therapeutic areas.
The Group initiated a long-term 5-year business transition
plan starting from 2003, steering it from a domestic
leading provider of new drug licenses to a global leading
full service company. The new integrated service business
model will allow company to enjoy service profits not
only from research but also contract manufacturing and

contract commercialization.
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The year 2006 was challenging for the Chinese
pharmaceutical industry, with a number of important
events and policies affecting the industry dramatically,
including SFDA changes, Medicare reform, anti-bribery
policy and price cutting. However, despite this, the
Company maintained its leading position in new drug
application, and VPS remained to be the largest CRO in
China in terms of completed and undergoing clinical trials,
demonstrating that we are taking the right steps to create
and sustain value.

CRS (Clinical Research Service)

VPS, the clinical research business unit of the Company,
has become China’s largest CRO in terms of finished
and undergoing clinical trials.

There were 34 new clinical service contracts signed with
total contract value to approximately RMB32,780,000 in
2006, a 8.65% increase over 2005. By the end of 2006,
the Group contracted with 70 clients and contacted over
1000 clients, involving both domestic and multinational
companies. The Group CRS revenue reached
RMB26,007,000, an 85.3% increase over 2005. The
Company’s CRS business is growing rapidly as the CRS
market is booming globally. VPS is committed to providing
the international quality services with better local price to
pharmaceutical and biotech clients.

In order to meet the global booming demand for clinical
research outsourcing, VPS plans to quickly expand the
business through both self-development and M&A,
supported by the capital market. To establish strategic
alliance with large pharmaceutical and biotech companies
is one of the priorities as it can provide sustainable growth
for the Company.
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PDS (Pharmaceutical Development Service)

Research-oriented global pharmaceutical companies, have
undergone significant changes in the past few years. Many
global pharmaceutical companies are relying in the
services of contract product development to help them
meet growing demand more quickly. As a result, certain
competences, such as dosage form development are
increasingly being outsourced to third-party service
providers such as Venturepharm.

In year 2006, the Group entered into 52 contracts
(including PDS and technology transfer services) with 26
pharmaceutical companies, which was 9 contracts more
than those entered in year 2005. The total contract value
reached RMB32,556,000 and revenues obtained from
PDS was RMB29,298,000, a 16.7% increase over 2005.
The Group established relationship with 1037 companies
on PDS operations and 251 companies paid us a visit
and showed much interest in our PDS business.

It is our extraordinary experience and the full range of
expertise in R&D that distinct Venturepharm from the
competitors. We can offer clients with various choices
from compound selection to patient kit assembly and
design, helping clients in every step of the way. With the
combined resources of Venturepharm, we can provide
single or integrated solutions with capabilities for virtually
most of dosage forms. We also possess advanced
proprietary delivery technologies and the expertise that
can provide solutions to most complex development
problems.
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Contract Commercialization Services

The Company has developed a royalty business model
to promote the commercialization of products. It deploys
a strategy that focuses on certain therapeutic areas,
allowing us to fully take advantage of the most valuable
resources. Currently, CNS and dermatology therapeutic
products are the key group of products promoted to the
franchised partners or agents. In this way, the Company
is competing in the market with a group of products,
rather a single product. The Group has kept those highly
valuable new drugs with potential market for
commercialization so as to get long-term return.

The Company already launched 8 new products in the
market during 2005, and added 7 new products to its
portfolio in 2006. Target customers are hospitals and
medical institutions, as well as retail drug stores. There
are 330,000 medical institutions, 70,000 hospitals, and
120,000 drug stores in China, which translates into huge
market potential. The royalties generated from
commercialization will become the major contribution to

the future success of the Group.

Overall, the Company stays committed to move up the
pharmaceutical value chain, in order to pursue its vision

of being a global pharmaceutical service provider.

BREELCRKE

ARAERBEL - EENXBENESEM
BEL - ZRARBIFINETAREEZ
Rig - EARBRERDVNARLEZER -
CNSE I B a B Em AR MR E EX
HAREBRERECIEEMES - AAFIMA
ZIEEmS LR-EER (MIEE—EmM)
ETHRT  AEBEREBEABEN S L EH
ENGFEEL KMESKRHADE -

AR ZZEERFEAEMSG LELSENE
M —EEAFHRAEERMESENTES
Em- - BEREFAERREBEHRBURTE
ZE[E o 145 330,000R & E#E - 70,000
K B Pt X 120,000K %5 - AJ &b R E A
MHEN c AEMEEZEFNBEAELS
B ARRKINELEZFTR °

BEMS > ARARMDBORE EFEYEE
# HERREREYRGRHERD -

21



BERBEEARAE —FTNFFH

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
EHEES @RS

22

API (Active Pharmaceutical Ingredient)

The core competency of VP-API focuses on its strong
R&D capacity, driven by over two hundred scientific elites
in chemistry from all over the world. In 2005, three API
products in VP-Hanjiang passed the GMP attestation:
AlendronateSodium, Racecadotril and LANSOPRAZOLE.
In 2006, these API products gradually generated more
revenues for the Company. The Group is seeking to
expand the market globally and reduce cost to attract
the clients in Southeast. We are ambitiously building our
product portfolio to meet the needs of our clients in
generic drugs or patent-challenged formula in regulated
markets, and the needs of the generic players in emerging
markets.

Research & Development

The Group’s portfolio covers all major and high growth
therapeutic areas such as diabetes, CNS (18 8 18 4% & 47),
cardiovascular disease, dermatosis, cancer, AIDS and
allergy.

The Group’s R&D strength still remained the leading
position in the industry. Till now, the Group has 100
products under development. In 2006, the State Food
and Drug Administration (“SFDA”) granted 43 new Clinical
Study Permits and 21 new Manufacturing Permits to the
Group. The total number of Clinical Study Permit (CSP)
accumulated by the Group climbed to 270 and the total
number of Manufacturing Permits accumulated by the
Group climbed to 93.
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The following graph sets out the total numbers of clinical
permits and manufacturing permits obtained by the Group
during the past years:
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Patents

The Group always places great emphasis on the
protection of intellectual property rights. For the past
twelve months, 56 new patent applications were
submitted to the State Intellectual Property Office (“SIPO”),
making a total of 126 patents applications as at 31
December 2006 by the Group since the start of its

operation.
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EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. William Xia GUO, is the Chairman, Chief Executive Officer,
Managing Director and Joint Chief Technology Officer of the
Group. Mr. Guo is responsible for strategic planning and
development, overall management and R&D activities of the
Group. Mr. Guo obtained with a Master degree in science
from University of Toronto in March 1997. Mr. Guo has also
completed various approved courses for the degree of Master
of Business Administration in the Heriot-Watt University.
Before establishing the Group in December 1998, Mr. Guo
had worked for two pharmaceutical companies in Canada,
namely Ortho-McNeil Inc. and Novopharm Limited, both are
pharmaceutical companies in Canada as research scientist
and process development manager, respectively. Mr. Guo
has approximately 10 years experience in research,
pharmaceutical development and management in the
pharmaceutical industry. Mr. Guo is a member of the American
Association of Pharmaceutical Scientists and the National
Pharmaceutical Sciences Group Inc.

Dr. Maria Xue Mei SONG, is an executive Director. Dr. Song
is responsible for Clinical Research (R&D) and also the head
of the Human Resources Management Department of the
Group. Dr. Song graduated from China Concord Medical
University with a Doctorate degree in clinical medicine in July
1995. She is also a Registered Pharmacist in the PRC. Prior
to joining the Group in February 2000, Ms. Song had served
as general manager of Beijing Tiancifu Biopharmaceutical Co.
Ltd.
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NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. FENG Tao, is nominated as a non-executive Director by
C Tech Fund. Mr. Feng obtained a Master degree in Science
from the Department of Statistics and Applied Probability
from the University of Alberta in June 1992. Mr. Feng has
been serving as the Vice President Officer of the The
Foundation of Science and Technology for Development of
the State Planning Committee, State Economic and Trade
Commission of the PRC and China Science Academy since
September 1999. He was appointed as non-executive Director
in August 2002.

Mr. WU Xin, is a non-executive Director nominated by C
Tech Fund. Mr. Wu is a vice-president of NewMargin. Mr.
Wu obtained his Master of Science degree from Stanford
University in Engineering-Economic Systems in 1994 and a
Bachelor of Science degree in Electrical Engineering from
University of lllinois in May 1993. Prior to joining NewMargin,
Mr. Wu worked in Chase Capital Partners, an investment
firm, and at Robertson Stephens & Company, an investment
firm based in San Francisco. He was appointed as non-

executive Director in August 2002.

Dr. Nathan Xin ZHANG, is a non-executive director. Dr. Zhang
is the former chief executive officer of Chipscreen Biosciences
Ltd., a leading Chinese biotech company specialized in
innovated cancer, diabetes, and osteoporosis drug discovery.
Dr. Zhang had worked with KPMG LLP and Credit Suisse
First Boston. Dr. Zhang holds an M. D from Tianjin Medical
University, Ph. D from University of Pennsylvania, and an
MBA from the University of Chicago, USA.
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INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. WANG Hong Bo, is an independent non-executive Director
and is the chairman of the audit committee. He is a member
of the Association of Chartered Certified Accountants and
the Chinese Institute of Certified Public Accountants. Mr.
Wang graduated from Nan Kai University with a master
degree. Mr. Wang is presently a finance manager of TCL
Group Limited. Mr. Wang has over 10 years of experience in
auditing. He was appointed as independent non-executive
Director in September 2004.

Mr. Paul CONTOMICHALGQOS, is an independent non-executive
Director. He holds an MBA from the Columbia University in
May 1985. Mr. Contomichalos had worked for Bristol-Myers
Squibb (BMS). His first position in China was to start up the
consumer over-the-counter business of Bristol-Myers Squibb
in 1994. He became Chairman and President of Bristol-Myers
Squibb China from 1997 to 2000. Prior to working in China,
Mr. Contomichalos held various key consumer marketing and
business development positions with Bristol-Myers Squibb in
the USA and Canada and has about 18 years of experience
in this field. He was appointed as independent non-executive
Director in August 2002.

Mr. WU Ming Yu, is an independent non-executive Director.
Mr. Wu is a member of the education committee of the China
(Hainan) Reform Development Research Institute, a member
of Standing Committee of China Association of Science and
Technology; President of Chinese Society of Technology
Economics; Honorary President of China Society of Science
and Science Technology Policy Research and Vice-President
of China Society of Land Economics Research. Mr. Wu has
held the post of Vice Minister of the Development Research
Center of the State Council, Vice Minister of the State Science
and Technology Commission; President of China Technology
Economic Research Institute; Vice President of China Society
of Science and Science Technology Policy; Economist of
Economy Research Institute of the State Council and
President of Asia-Pacific Research Institute. He was appointed
as independent non-executive Director in August 2002.
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PROFILE OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

EEREREBRBEGE

SENIOR MANAGEMENT

The Group’s senior management comprises the following
employees:

Mr. George Fei Peng, is the Vice President of the group. Mr.
Peng holds a Master of Finance and Investment degree from
Durham University (UK). He has over ten years of experience
in investment management in US, U.K and China. Before
joining the Group, he was a co-founding partner of Il Global
Consulting.

Dr. Tom Tuo Jin, is the Joint Chief Technology Officer. Dr.
Jin holds M. D from University of Toronto and Ph. D from
Hokkaida University. Dr. Jin engaged in education and
pharmaceutical R&D in Japan, USA Novartis and Canada for
years. Dr. Jin was a researcher with Aventis-Pasteur (USA),
Supervisor of Formulation Division with BioDelivery Science
(USA), as well as Associate Professor with Long Island
University. Dr. Jin is the dean of Sinican Institute. Dr. Jin
published 25 articles in periodical and applied for 10 patents.
Dr. Jin is a member of American Association of Pharmaceutical
Scientists.

Dr. Tarun GUPTA, is the co-head of the Group’s Business
Development Department (International Division). He is also
the Chief Executive Officer of P.K. Pharmatech in India. Dr.
Gupta has obtained his degree of bachelor of medicine and
bachelor of surgery in December 1982. He worked with Lupin
Laboratories Limited of India before he joined the Group in
December 2000 and was seconded to the exclusive marketing
and distribution agent in Hong Kong in 1996. He was
responsible for marketing and distributing of product of Lupin
Group in the Asia region. He has over ten years of experience

in the field of pharmaceutical industry.
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The directors of the Company present their annual report
and the audited consolidated financial statements of the
Company and its subsidiaries (the “Group”) for the year ended
31 December 2006.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Company acts as an investment holding company. The
principal activities of the Company’s subsidiaries and
associates are set out in notes 14 and 15, respectively, to
the financial statements.

An analysis of the Group’s performance for the year by
business segments is set out in note 6 to the financial
statements.

RESULTS AND APPROPRIATION

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 December
2006 are set out in the consolidated income statement on
page 54 of the annual report.

The directors do not recommend the payment of final dividend
for the year ended 31 December 2006 and propose that the
profit for the year be retained.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of movements in the property, plant and equipment
of the Group and the Company during the year are set out in
note 12 to the financial statements.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of the share capital of the Company are set out in
note 25 to the financial statements.

ARMEFRUSHEAAARKEAR (A%
BBE-FEAFH A=+ ALFEZ
FTEREREBREAMFAR -

FEXH

ARBB—HAREZERAT - ARBZHBEA
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AEBFARRBEBETLON - BRI B R
RIFEEG ©

FERIE
AEEBRE_ZZERF+_A=+—HLEE
CEBHRANERESIBFANER °
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I FERRRBEEE  YRHRBAFER
7 o

ME- - BERRE
FAEERADANE BERRBREAFEZ
lllllll BHHBERRUBRRM T2
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RESERVES

Movements in the reserves of the Group and of the Company
during the year are set out in note 26 to the financial
statements.

FIVE YEARS FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the results and of the assets and liabilities of
the Group for the last five financial years is set out on pages
143 to 144.

DIRECTORS

The directors of the Company during the year and up to the
date of this report are:

Managing Director:
William Xia GUO
Executive Directors:

Maria Xuemei SONG
David Xuesong GAO (resigned on 27 March 2006)

Non-Executive Directors:

FENG Tao

WU Xin

Nathan Xin ZHANG

Independent Non-Executive Directors:
WANG Hong Bo

Paul CONTOMICHALOS
WU Ming Yu

f#th

AEERARRFEERFERAZEHFIEHNE
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In accordance with Articles 95 and 112 of the Company’s
Articles of Association, WU Xin, Feng Tao, Nathan Xin ZHANG,
WANG Hong Bo, Paul CONTOMICHALOS and WU Ming Yu
retire and, being eligible, offer themselves for re-election.

Apart from Nathan Xin ZHANG and WANG Hong Bo, who do
not have a service contract, each of the executive directors
has entered into a service contract with the Company for
three years from 10 July 2003 (the “Listing Date”). Each of
the executive directors and non-executive directors was
appointed as director of the Company respectively subject to
termination in certain circumstances as stipulated in the
relevant service contracts, if applicable.

On 11 July 2006, the service contract with each director
other than Nathan Xin ZHANG and WANG Hong Bo, expired
and be renewed for one more year.

Save as disclosed above, no directors proposed for re-election
at the forthcoming annual general meeting has a service
contract with the Company or any of its subsidiaries which is
not determinable by the Group within one year without
payment of compensation (other than statutory
compensation).

DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S INTEREST IN
SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES AND DEBENTURES

As at 31 December 2006, the interests and short positions
of the Company’s directors and chief executives in the shares,
underlying shares or debentures of the Company and its
associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of
the Securities and Futures Ordinance (the “SFQ”), which are
required (a) to notify the Company and The Stock Exchange
of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) pursuant to
Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including interests
or short positions which they are taken or deemed to have
taken under such provision of the SFQO); or (b) pursuant to
section 352 of the SFO, to be entered in the register referred
to therein; or (c) pursuant to Rules 5.46 to 5.67 of the GEM
Listing Rules were as follows:

REBEARB ZHEBEZSEMANFISR1211(F
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TR -
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Long positions in shares and underlying shares of the Company

(1) The Company

REQXATROGREBROZHER
(1) K2 al
Number of

Number of shares
in which interested

shares in which
interested under
physically settled

equity derivatives Approximate

(other than under REENLEE percentage
Type of equity derivatives) RAST4E  Total number of interest
Name interest Capacity FERRZRHEE ITAEERER of shares BRHL
®E BRER L) (RAFTET BB ZRAEE RAAEE BOk
(Note 3)
(HEE3)
William Xia GUO Personal Beneficial owner 9,110,377 7,884,000 16,994,377 4.72
FE {EPN ExBEAA
William Xia GUO Corporate Interest of a controlled 149,432,583 - 149,432,583 41,51
#HE NG Corporation (Note 1)
XEHEEER (1)
William Xia GUO Corporate Interest of a controlled 15,966,073 - 15,966,073 4.44
#HE NG corporation (Note 2)
XEHEEER (2
Note 1:  The controlled corporation, Venturepharm Holdings Inc. is MEEE1 © 2425k @ Venturepharm Holdings Inc. /& B
47.63 % directly held by Mr. Guo Xia and 44.94 % held by ERAEEFH47.63%KE - ARAZFEL
Mr. Guo Xia through Winsland Agents Limited, his wholly and 4 3% 3B Winsland Agents Limited (72 2 & Bz %2
beneficially owned company incorporated in British Virgin HEFMKY  AfAE2EERNHEAR)
Islands. B 44.94%5 HE ©
Note 2:  The controlled corporation, Bright Excel Assets Limited, is fiFE2 : =% )% B Bright Excel Assets Limited 2 5
100 % beneficially owned by Venturepharm Holdings Inc. fi% # B Venturepharm Holdings Inc. & &= #
5
Note 3: Various interests of the directors and chief executives pursuant
to physically settled equity derivatives are through share f#FE3: ZBESRFTETHRAEREWEERATAET

options granted under the Pre-IPO share option scheme.
Details of which are set forth as follows:

BBETZZERRAAEBREBEFGRARMER
A BB AT Bl b 2 BRI A o FFIEHT
mr
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Number of shares
in which interested
under physically settled
equity derivatives as at
20 June 2003 and
31 December 2006
R-BEE=FXA=+H
E—ZEEXFEF+=-H=+—H
Name REEBEYEERATEIR Date of grant Exercise price
%A BFERERZ2ROEE g = TEE
William Xia GUO 7,200,000 20 June 2003 HK$0.32
LE —EE=FA=+H 0.327 T
William Xia GUO 360,000 02 March 2005 HK$0.52
e —ETRF=H=H 0.527% 7T
William Xia GUO 324,000 10 August 2006 HK$0.36
e —EERFNATH 0.3678 T

Options granted to Mr. William Xia GUO contain a vesting
schedule, pursuant to which may be exercise up to 30 %
of the underlying shares after 31 December 2003, up to
another 30 % of the underlying shares after 31 December
2004 and the remaining balance after 31 December 2005.
These options will expire ten years after the date of grant.
Mr. GUO has also undertaken to the Stock Exchange
that he will not exercise his options granted under the
Pre-IPO share option scheme within the first 12 months

from the listing date.

BELEEER BRELONETSEBRER @ &
I IR ZEE=FF+ A =+—H#%&T
FRZ R ERARD30%Z BRE  R_TZ
ME+=—A=+—RETETZREERD
HEp30% s EBiE  RR_FTAF+=A
=+ —BRITESRT ZERE - BAERE
BRELBHETFEER - BESLENER
B FAR  REmBHEtE12EARN -
BRETERERBEES AR EIBIRET
BIER ZERE -
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(2) A subsidiary of the Company — Beijing Dezhong-Venture

Pharmaceutical Technology Development Company
Limited

(2) KRELZHE R Al — 1t F1ZZE 2 BT
FA#E5R A A]

Approximate
percentage of
interest of
shareholding
in joint venture

Capital contribution
on a Sino-foreign
co-operative

joint venture

Name Type of interest Capacity R—BHIIEE REEbERE
" E ERER 514 EELECIHER ZEGBAB I
William Xia GUO Corporate Interest of a controlled US$111,000 12.83
e UNE corporation (Note 1) 111,000% 7T

RPEHEE R (M eE1)
Note 1:  The interest is held by Beijing Venturepharm Biotech a1 : BREBRILIEREZ2ADEZERNEARQANG

Pharmaceutical Technology Company Limited, a limited liability
company incorporated in the PRC, for which 99% of its
shareholding is beneficially held by Mr. William Xia GUO and
1% held by Dr. Maria Xue-mei SONG.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2006, none
of the directors and chief executive had any interests or
short positions in any securities of the Company or any
of its associated corporations (within the meaning of Part
XV of the SFO) which are required (a) to be notified to
the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to
Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including interests
or short positions which they are taken or deemed to
have under such provision of the SFO); or (b) pursuant to
section 352 of the SFO, to be entered in the register
referred to therein; or (c) pursuant to the rules 5.46 to

5.67 of the GEM Listing Rules.

o ZARA—RRTBEFMEAILZERA
Al HOO%REHAELEETRFE 1%
Al ARSHELRFA -

BREXFEZEEN  RZBEEXNF+ZA=
+—H BERFETBRAEBRERAKAA
S EHAWBEEE (E&RFHRBAEEH
EXVE) 2FEHR - EBHEQBERE %&Hﬂ
“"ﬂﬂﬁﬂ%xv*ﬁ%7&%8’\*|§%H@$

Bt 2P 2 R = SOR B (B %T&—JETFM
HFRHE 11*1%;2?{\7&%&*{ﬂzﬁtﬂﬁﬁz
EHIAR)  HO)REEF REE RS
3521451 A\ 5% & 1 it 1l &< 50 it 2 AT i 25 K
KB HC)IRIFEAIZER LR AIFES.46E
5.7 Z B EZEMERI AR o
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS

So far as it is known to any directors, chief executives of the
Company, as at 31 December 2006, the interests and short
positions of persons in the shares and underlying shares of
the Company which would fall to be disclosed pursuant to
Division 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO or which were required,
pursuant to section 336 of Part XV of the SFO, to be entered
in the register referred to therein were as follows:

Long positions in shares and underlying shares of the Company

FERR

BAABEMEERIETRABRA K=
ZERF+ZA=+—B UATALIHAEERR
Bl Z iy RARRE B in R e iz ROX B T BRI
EBHERHERHIEXVEEE2RFEID B E LK
T HARBES KRB GHIEXVELF 3361RE
FIAZ G & Mz s MR B -

REXFARGREBRD Z2HFR

Approximate

percentage
Number of interest
Name Capacity of Shares BN
=x: g7} igvig- Q| Bok
Venturepharm Holdings Inc. Beneficial owner 149,432,583 41.51
(Note 1) (P 3% 1) ERBEAA
Venturepharm Holdings Inc. Interest of a controlled corporation 15,966,073 4.44
(Note 2) (Fff 7% 2) REEDEEE RS
Bright Excel Assets Limited Beneficial owner 15,966,073 4.44
(Note 2) (Fff 7E2) BEHERA
C Tech Fund Beneficial owner 80,736,558 22.43
EmEAA
William Xia GUO (Notes 1, 2 & 3) Beneficial owner and interest 182,069,033 50.57
ZPE (MiaE1 ~ 2K%3) of controlled corporations

EDBEARZEREEE R

Note 1:  Venturepharm Holdings Inc. is 47.63% directly held by Mr. Guo
Xia and 44.94% held by Mr. Guo Xia through Winsland Agent
Limited, his wholly and beneficially owned company incorporated
in the British Virgin Islands.

Note 2: The controlled corporation, Bright Excel Assets Limited, is 100 %.
Beneficially owned by Venturepharm Holdings Inc.

Note 3: Apart from shares held through Venturepharm Holdings Inc., the
interest of 16,310,377 shares comprising of 7,200,000 and 360,000
shares underlying the options granted to him under the Pre-IPO
Share Option Scheme and Share Option Scheme respectively are
beneficially owned by Mr. William Xia GUO.

BFET

B2 :

Bt 5E3 -

Venturepharm Holdings Inc.% Bl /A 28 B 5t 4 & #
Fr A 47.63%% 4 + A N i 78 B 5E 4 33 B Winsland
Agent Limited (R B Z RStz - BBk
E2EERRA) FHA4.94%RHE o

5242 7% [E Bright Excel Assets LimitedZ & i% #&
£ Venturepharm Holdings Inc. B 25 # A

% i 3B Venturepharm Holdings Inc.3% B 2 & {5
G BEHREEZHEHF 16,310,377 RO -
H A B ERER E IR A S IR AR 8 &% R
T EIR T 1% 2 BAR#E 7% &k 5 51 7,200,000/% A%
5 % 360,0000% & 15 °
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Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2006, there
was no other persons who was recorded in the register of
the Company as having interest or short position in the shares
or underlying shares of the Company which would fall to be
disclosed to the Company under Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV
of the SFO or which were required, pursuant to section 336
of Part XV of the SFO, to be entered in the register referred
to therein.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS OF
SIGNIFICANCE

Save as disclosed in note 28 and note 33 to the financial
statements, no other contracts of significance to which the
Company or any of its subsidiaries was a party and in which
a director of the Company had a material interest, whether
directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end of the year or at
any time during the year.

CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

Venturepharm Inc. (“VP Inc.”), a subsidiary of the Company’s
shareholder, engages the Group to research and develop
seven new drugs and provide related pharmaceutical
application, registration and testing services. According to
the agreements entered into by VP Inc. and the Group,
approximately 20 to 40 per cent. of the contract sum is
payable by VP Inc. within seven days after the application to
The State Food and Drug Administration of the People’s
Republic of China (the “SFDA”) for clinical study permit is
accepted; approximately 30 per cent. within seven days after
obtaining clinical study permit from the SFDA; approximately
20 to 40 per cent. after completion of clinical trial with
submission of a full report to VP Inc.; and approximately 10
per cent. within seven days after obtaining new drug certificate
from the SFDA. The total contract value is RMB6.6 million,
which were, in the opinion of the directors of the Company,
conducted in the normal course of business at prices and
terms no less than those charged to and contracted with
other third party customers of the Group. During the year,
the Group received RMB564,000 from VP Inc. for these
services provided. The Group was granted a waiver covering
the period from the Listing Date to 31 December 2006 from
strict compliance with the GEM Listing Rules.

BREXHBEEIN R_TTRFT-_A=1
— B BARFAECMEE  SIEEATEMA
IRARFZROHBEEBROPHEAREE
MG ERPIEXVEIFE 2R FE 37 Jh @A R Al #
BZBEmIORR  HARBRESFRBPEERGIE
XVED 5 336 {5 51 A 5% 16k P aft & 72 it 2 # & 3%

A
=)

EEREXRGHZESR

BRBI 75 SRR MY 28 KR MY FESSWE EH ID - MF &
AFREARE  SEFERNRRREEM
MBARASEFITNIRARBAEEREFTE
BERHEEAEEARGZIERALD -

BEXZ

KR T AR B 2 i B 2 & Venturepharm Inc. ([VP
Inc.]) R AL BB RiRHRER
A AWM ERAERE o REBEVP Inc. R AN B ET
SN ZWEE VP Inc.EEM A E AR EMBEEH K
RmEREEEER(RMEREER]) BE
ARG BEEMELARINANSEY
20%E40% ; BISRMmEMBEER B L BRI
HFREZEAATFL30% 0 RERRKS TR
WRVP Inc.RR — M ZERE B I F420%=
40% : RRESEREREEREL 2 HEE
ERTtHAIHO10% AHNBEAARE
6,600,0007C ° ARAIEERR  ZERX IR
HEEBBAEFRITERNAEBELME=7
BEERGFEIN 2 BB RIGHET - FAR - A
SEMAVPINCREZERBAKMERE LA
R#564,0007C - AEEEE B FTHBRE=
TZERNFF+F_A=T—HILHBAARRERE
TEIER EMBAZE#E -
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SHARE OPTION SCHEMES

1.

Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme

Pursuant to the written resolution passed by the
shareholder on 31 March 2003, the Company adopted a
“Pre-IPO Share Option
Scheme”) in order to recognise and reward the

share option scheme (the

contribution of certain directors, senior management and
advisers, the details of which are set out in the paragraph
head “Share Option Scheme” in Appendix IV to the
Prospectus. As at 20 June 2003, options comprising a
total of 11,520,000 underlying shares were granted. As
at 31 December 2006, the options outstanding are
11,520,000 and no options granted pursuant to the Pre-
IPO Share Option Scheme had been exercised, cancelled
or lapsed. Particulars of the outstanding options that had
been granted under the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme
as at 31 December 2006 are as follows:

Period during

which the options
remain exercisable
after the date of grant

B

Exercise price

=113

-

BRAMERABRESS

RKATBERERA-_EZE=F=A=1+—8H
e LZEE&%%WWEHQ%E%H(rémﬁ
FRERAERETE])  UEERRRET
% %%&Ei@&&ﬁﬁﬁza%ﬁ CEBER
EREEMEE [BARETE] —B& - R
E=FNAZ+H XRAREHRHFREE
11,520,000 AR D 2 BRE - KT T
NE+=ZA=+—H - 11,520,00017 & % ##
MAITE - BREBEEXAFSIRATERERT
BRI R T - SRR -
REZZEZARF+ZA=1+—8 ' BEEXAQ
FRERAMBREFSIERLDBRRITEZRE
BREFBIT

Number of underlying

shares under the option

as at 20.6.2003

and 31.12.2006
R-ZZEZE=FXA=-1+HEK

Name of grantees BRERRH per share —EEXRFE+=ZA=+-—H
ARA®E BHEAFTEHAR BRITEE BRESR ZEBROHA
William Xia GUO (Notes 1 & 2) 10 years HK$0.32 7,200,000
BE (PFeE1K%2) TF 0.327% 7T
2 other participants (Notes 1 & 2) 10 years HK$0.32 2,520,000
A H 28 (1 k2) TF 0.327% 7T
1 other participant (Note 3) 10 years HK$0.40 1,800,000
— R HM2EE (KE3) TF 0.407% 7T

11,520,000
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Share Option Scheme

Pursuant to the written resolutions by the shareholders
of the Company on 23 May 2003, the Company adopted

a new share option scheme.

As at 2 March 2005, options comprising a total of
4,042,000 underlying shares were granted. As at 31 4,0
December 2006, the options outstanding are 1,892,000
and 2,150,000 options granted pursuant to this Share
Option Scheme had been cancelled or lapsed. Particulars
of the outstanding options which have been granted under
this Share Option Scheme as at 31 December 2006 are

as follows:

2. BREE

g o

R-—ZET

— ==

Period during
which the options
remain exercisable

after the date of grant Exercise price

RIBEA QAR
ZEERER -

RR-ZZE=FAA_+=H

AR R ER A — IR R AL T

EF=A-H BREFEEH
OCORHREARX D 2 BB HE - R=FF
/\¢+ A=+—H ' &1,892,0001 %
REMARTTEE - KB 2,150,000 1R 1 % ¥ Ax
A ERN cBIREDREHEIRR - K=
ZERFTZA=+—8  FAREBERE
AAEIEE Z HARTTEBRESBOT

Number of underlying
shares under the option

at 2.3.2005

and 31.12.2006
R-ZZERF=HA=-HK

Name of grantees BRENR S per share —EEANE+=-A=+—H
ABEAER HHEI&A FITELHR BRTEE BRESRZEBRAEE
William Xia GUO 10 years HK$0.52 360,000
HE T+ 0.5278 7T
Other directors 10 years HK$0.52 720,000
HEmES T4 0.52% 7T
Other participant 10 years HK$0.52 812,000
Hh2mE T+ 0.5278 7T

1,892,000
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Share Option Scheme

Pursuant to the written resolutions by the shareholders
of the Company on 23 May 2003, the Company adopted

a new share option scheme.

As at 14 December 2005, options comprising a total of
1,098,000 underlying shares were granted. As at 31
December 2006, the options outstanding are 288,000
and 810,000 options granted pursuant to the Share
Option Scheme had been cancelled or lapsed. Particulars
of the outstanding options which have been granted under

BRETE

BERARARER-_ZZT=FAA_+=H
ZEERBR  ARBERA—IBNBRE

g o

R-ZZFZAF+-_ATHE EREFRAE
#£1,098,000 X HHEA AL (0 < BB A #E - KW= F
TRFETZA=+—HB - F288,00017 B
R ARTTEE - &ﬁ8100001§ﬁ5‘<?ﬁﬁﬁﬁx%ﬁ
R BRI HERRY - N

RNE+T-A=+—8" ﬁ@ﬂﬁ%ﬁﬁﬁx%ﬁ%ﬂ

this Share Option Scheme as at 31 December 2006 are B ZERTEBREFBOT
as follows:
Number of underlying
Period during shares under the option
which the options at 14.12.2005
remain exercisahle and 31.12.2006
after the date of grant Exercise price R-ZEZEHEF+=-A+HEA
Name of grantees BREREH pershare R_-_ZEZEXF+-_A=+—H
ERAKR HEEAFIEBAR BRITEE BRESR ZHEBRGHE
4 participants 10 years HK$0.45 288,000
4% 2k T+ 0.457% 7T
288,000
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Share Option Scheme

4. BRETE

Pursuant to the written resolutions by the shareholders BEARABREN_ZEE=FRAA_-_+=H
of the Company on 23 May 2003, the Company adopted ZEMRBR @ ANARRM—EF B
a new share option scheme. gl o

As at 10 August 2006, options comprising a total of RZEERNFENA+H EEEFREHR
4,118,400 underlying shares were granted. As at 31 4,118,000 B IR h 2 B ix#E - RZZ =

December 2006, the options outstanding are 3,708,000
and 410,400 options granted pursuant to the Share
Option Scheme had been cancelled or lapsed. Particulars
of the outstanding options which have been granted under
this Share Option Scheme as at 31 December 2006 are

as follows:

Period during
which the options
remain exercisable

/\¢+ H=+—H ' &3,708,00017 & iX
RE R RTTHE -} B 410,40017 1R & BB AR 4 5
FRBZBREOHEHEIRR - R_FF
RNRET-ZA=1+—8B  FRARERBERETE
Rz HARITEBREFBLT :

Number of underlying
shares under the option
at 10.8.2006

and 31.12.2006

after the date of grant Exercise price R=-FBEZEANENATH
Name of grantees BRERRH pershare R_-_ZEZEXF+-_A=+—H
ABAER HHEAZ A F 1T EHIBR BRITHEE BRESR ZEBRAEAE
William Xia GUO 10 years HK$0.36 324,000
ME +&F 0.3678 7T
Other directors 10 years HK$0.36 792,000
HMESE +F 0.3678 7T
Other participant 10 years HK$0.36 2,592,000
Hih 2 8% +&F 0.3678 7T
3,708,000
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COMPETING INTERESTS

As at 31 December 2006, none of the Directors or the
management shareholders of the Company and their
respective associates (as defined in the GEM Listing Rules)
had any interest in a business that competes or may compete
with the business of the Group.

BOARD PRACTICE AND PROCEDURES

Since the listing of the Company, the Company has complied
with Board Practices and Procedures as set out in Rules
5.46 to 5.68 of the GEM Listing Rules.

INDEPENDENCE OF INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE
DIRECTORS

The Company has received from each independent non-
executive directors an annual confirmation for independence
pursuant to Rule 5.09 of the GEM Listing Rules. The
independent non-executive directors have confirmed that they
are independent.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF THE
COMPANY’S SHARES

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries purchased,
sold or redeemed any of the Company’s listed shares during
the year ended 31 December 2006.

MAJOR SUPPLIERS AND CUSTOMERS

During the year, the five largest customers of the Group
accounted for approximately 22% of the Group’s sales. The
largest customer accounted for approximately 6% of the sales
of the Group.

BEES

R-BERF+_A=1+—B XRBZE=E
HEEERRERESAZBHEAL (EERE
FRETARA) BB EFERAEEEBE K
AREBKBFHNRGTRARER

EEEERARER

ANATE EMLAR
$5.46%5.681F8 5| 2 &=

—EETRIER TR
ERRKLERF

BUFHTESZBLM

ARBERIFEIFER LT HAIFES.00F K258
VIFATEETB UM FERER - BB
TEECHERABBIAL -

BE -HEFEEAQAREG

HE_ZEFT_A=1+—HIEEAR &R
Tﬂzﬁ{ﬂ WEB AR MERE  HEXERT
EP /NGl i)

o

FTEHREBREF

TR AKEELREFHEASEEERY
22% - RABFPIHAKREHERNO% °
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Aggregate purchases attributable to the Group’s five largest
suppliers were less than 10% of the Group’s total purchases.

None of the directors, their associates or any shareholders
which, to the knowledge of the directors, own more than 5%
of the Company’s issued share capital had any interest in the
five largest customers of the Group.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There is no provision for pre-emptive rights under the
Company’s Articles of Association or the laws of the Cayman
Islands, which would oblige the Company to offer new shares
on a pro-rata basis to existing shareholders.

AUDITORS

Baker Tilly Hong Kong Limited were appointed as the auditors
of the Company in succession to HLB Hodgson Impey Cheng
who resigned from the office with effect from 1 February
2007. Baker Tilly Hong Kong Limited will retire and, being
eligible, offer themselves for re-appointment as auditors of

the Company at the forthcoming annual general meeting.

On behalf of the Board

William Xia Guo
Chairman

Beijing, the PRC, 27 March 2007

AEERIAHRBRARGEABRELIRAS
BEER10% °

i)
R

oo

REEMA  BERARASETRABS%CE
ECHBBEATREARERMERANEERKR
EPRHEEMER -

BrBRE

ARABZAREBERARKFEERE AL
EETERE IR MARABAERL IR
BAEBREZHBMD

7% 401

EREMEBMERARNBRZERARAZ
ZED - ABREBER _TTLF_A—HEE2ZH
BETANEBH - ERASTMEBMARRAA
HREERRBEFAGRET  AEEREBR
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(1) CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The Company applied the principles and fully complied
with the Code Provision as set out in Appendix 15 of the
GEM Listing Rules (“CG Code”) with certain deviations
save as disclosed in respect of (1) the roles of chairman
and chief executive officer and (2) the remuneration
committee. The following summarizes the Company’s
corporate governance practices and explains of
deviations, if any, from the CG Code.

(2) DIRECTORS’ SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted the Company Code for
Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers in
compliance with the provisions that are set out in the
GEM Listing Rules as its own code of conduct for
Directors’ dealings of securities since 29 June, 2005.
Specific enquiries have been made with all Directors and
the Directors confirmed that they have complied with the
required standard set out in the Company Code
throughout the year ended 31 December 2006.

(N EEERER

AR BRAERIZEAR £ R BIM 816 8 R R
MEEBTETAETAGR(EXERS
MerRID) - ERRBECRRRE - RABMNE
FRTRAEFRH 2 ABRQFMEERS - TX
BAARRIZEXEAERYBERBELE
ERERTRZER(WME) -

RQEEZREHXS

ARRREBIREIRR TR RIFTEERS - 5
METBETAESETERR I QAT
Al - ERARRIR—_ZZRHFANA-_THA
HEESEESFBTER - KRE2EES
ELARENR  EFHR REXEBEE—
TERFT-_A=+T—"HILFE2F —H
By A ST RIFTEAR R -



The Board
By

Chairman appointed by the board
HEZSZITRE
2 Executive Directors
2fIMITES
3 Non-Executive Directors
SfIFFMITES
3 Independent Non-Executive Directors
BB IFHITES

Executive Directors Audit Committee
HITES ENEES
William Xia GUO 3 Independent Non-Executive Directors
BE BB IFITES
Maria Xuemei SONG Wang Hong Bo (Chairman)
REWE FAR (EFF)
Paul CONTOMICHALOS
Wu Ming Yu
R

Senior Management
SREERE

Mr. George Fei Peng, Vice President

TREE - Al

Dr. Tarun GUPTA, Co-head of the Group
Business Development

Tarun GUPTATE &+ - AR 2GR A ELE

Dr. Tom Tuo JIN, Joint Chief Technology Officer

SREL - BERMEE
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The Board of Directors (“Board”) of the Company is
collectively responsible for the oversight of the
management of the business and affairs of the Group
with the objective of enhancing shareholders value.

The Board of the Company comprises a total of eight
Directors, with two Executive Directors, three Non-
executive Directors and three Independent Non-executive
Directors. One-third of the Board is Independent Non-
executive Directors and one of them has appropriate
professional qualifications. Reviews are made regularly of
the Board composition to ensure that it has a balance of
expertise, skills and experience appropriate for the
requirements of the business of the Company. All
Independent Non-executive Directors meet the
independence guidelines set out in Rule 3.13 of the Listing
Rules and are independent in accordance with the terms
of the guidelines.

The Board, led by the Chairman, is responsible for the
approval and monitoring of the Group’s overall strategies
and policies; approval of annual budgets and business
plans; evaluating the performance of the Group; and
oversight of management. One of the important roles of
the Chairman is to provide leadership to the Board to
ensure that the Board acts in the best interests of the
Group. All Directors have been consulted about any
matters proposed for inclusion in the agenda. With the
support of Executive Directors and the Company
Secretary, the Chairman seeks to ensure that all Directors
are properly briefed on issues arising at Board meetings
and receives adequate and reliable information in a timely

manner.

ApREFe([EF8)) ARARREEAE
BEBREHBEE  URARREEARA
Hy o

ARAEEERARNRERTAK  HP W
ARRTES AR FRTEER=2R
BUFNTER - =0 Z2EEEKERB
VIHRTEST EF—REAGEEXEER -
EXSTHmAEER  URFRREEZE
EHE - BEEMERPISTE - MEEAN
NRAEKHRE - 2RBEUIFNTESTHTA
EHRANESAGME A LES - BEBREA
PRSI R X BB H 10 -

EEEeRIFRE  AAERREELEE
ERRBEBER  #HEFEREERB
2 HEAKERR  REEEEE-XF
Hp—RERRG - SELEFE - UER
EEQUAKERENRTE - EREEH
ABRBZERYOGHHALBESTER - B
WITEERAAME 2 - TEBNER
EREELREX/NENEFTEIHIEDL
ZEE VWERBRHRASEEF -
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Regular Board meetings of the year are scheduled in
advance to give all Directors an opportunity to attend.
Four regular Board meetings at approximately quarterly
intervals have been scheduled for 2006. The Directors
can attend meetings in persons or through other means
of electronic communication in accordance with the
Company'’s Articles of Association.

Board papers are circulated not less than seven days
before the Board meetings to enable the Directors to
make informed decisions on matters to be raised at the
Board meetings. The Company Secretary and the
Qualified Accountant shall attend all regular Board
meetings to advise on corporate governance, statutory
compliance, accounting and financial matters when
necessary. Directors shall have full access to information
on the Group and are able to obtain independent
professional advice whenever deemed necessary by the
Directors. The Company Secretary assists the Chairman
in establishing the meeting agenda, and each Director
may request inclusion of items in the agenda. Minutes of
the board meetings are kept by the Company Secretary
and are open for inspection by Directors.

ARFIERBFEHNEZTCERZTLRIIE
MR UREBEEEREHE -N_TT
NE - BRBFERTHRTHRAERES
EE > REARRZAREKERAA -
EXURGAEBETRANTALESH -

ESeXHERESTERRBTRLERA
B URREFEASREZTSSHRH
ZERELMBRE - RAINERAERSE
AEVALERAEHEEERE  UNFE
B bRER EAERD - Bt RHBEER
RESR -EFEAEDNAKEMRBEER -
VHEREERATERMEBYEEER -
RAMEMBTERUSEZIE MSES
AERNBREHAIEE - EFSHCHA
RAMERFE  LAIHEEEM -
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During the twelve months ended 31 December 2006, the

Board met and held four meetings in March, May, August

and November 2006. The attendance records of the

aforementioned four Board meetings are set out below:

EZEER

+= :+—E¢+:ﬂ

N
EEECR_ZTTRF=A HA -
Ak+—ARTOREH - J:L@xAﬁ%A
R ZHFLEHINMT ¢

Attendance of individual directors
at board meetings during the year

FRENEES2EESESRLER
Attendance no. Attendance rate
R & R

Executive Directors HITES
William Xia GUO E19=] 4/4 100%
Maria Xuemei SONG NEG 4/4 100%
Non-executive Directors FETES
FENG Tao 5 e 4/4 100%
WU Xin R R 4/4 100%
Nathan Xin ZHANG o IR 4/4 100%
Independent Non-executive Directors BIKHITES
WANG Hong Bo F 4R 4/4 100%
Paul CONTOMICHALOS Paul CONTOMICHALOS 4/4 100%
WU Ming Yu REAH 4/4 100%




VENTUREPHARM LABORATORIES LIMITED Annual Report 2006

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
Tt EXEEBR S

(4) CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

Chairman of the Board is responsible for the leadership
and effective running of the Board, and ensures that all
keys and appropriate issues are discussed by the Board
in a timely and constructive manner.

However, the Chief Executive Officer of the Company
has not yet been appointed. Currently, the day-to day
management of the Company’s business is handled by
the executive directors and senior management, who take
the responsibility to run the Group’s business and to
implement the Group’s strategy so as to achieve the
overall commercial objectives of the Company.

(5) REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS

Currently, the Remuneration Committee comprises the
Chairman of the Board Mr. William Xia GUO, a Non-
executive Director Mr. FENG Tao and an Independent
Non-executive Director Mr. Paul CONTOMICHALQOS. Mr.
William Xia GUO is the chairman of the Remuneration
Committee.

The principal responsibilities of the Remuneration
Committee include making recommendations to the Board
on the Company’s policy and structure for all remuneration
of Directors and senior management and reviewing the
specific remuneration packages of all executive Directors
and senior management by reference to corporate goals

and objectives resolved by the Board from time to time.

In order to comply with CG Code, the Directors will
discuss the appointment of another Independent Non-
executive Directors in the Remuneration Committee during
the upcoming Board meeting dated 27 March 2007.

) EFERITHEAR

EXEeT R FEES O REHANE
15 NEREFGNEEARZREMAWAT
BEZREESEHE-

AWM > RRBHAZEEMITRAR - R
B ARREHRZBEEEERATEERS
REBAEBRT  REBALEAEEER
RETASERE  UWERAARBERER
SR

B EBME

R FWNEEShESTSXIRBELLE -
FEMITERIHBF LA KB IEHITE EPaul
CONTOMICHALOS £ 485k - SFE L £ A
FMEBEEEE -

FHZES T ERAERNEAREZTRER
EEABERHME 2 ARBBREEE - [
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(6) NOMINATION OF DIRECTORS

In accordance with the Company’s Articles of Association,
nomination of directors is determined by the Board with
approvals by the shareholders in the general meeting.

(7) AUDITORS’ REMUNERATION

The coming annual general meeting should approve the
appointment of Baker Tilly Hong Kong Limited as new
auditors of the Group and that the Board is and be hereby
authorized to fix auditor’s remuneration. Non-audit
services were not provided by previous auditors to the
Company during the twelve months ended 31 December
2006.

(8) AUDIT COMMITTEE

The audit committee was established with written terms of
reference in compliance with the GEM Listing Rules. The
primary duties of the audit committee are to review the
Company’s annual reports and accounts, half-yearly reports
and quarterly reports and internal control system of the
Group and provide advice and comments to the Board.
The audit committee has three members comprising the
three Independent Non-Executive Directors, Mr. WANG
Hong Bo, Mr. Paul CONTOMICHALOS and Mr. WU Ming
Yu. Mr. WANG Hong Bo is the chairman of the audit
committee.

B REBES

REBEARRz ARABERAR  EFRES
HEZEGRTE  YRAERRABRRASH
JfE
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REERITZRERFAS EEEZTIEE
RS EHATAR AR AAEBH T
Bl - EFSRNERBEEEZEMME - &
BT F+_A=+—HItt+t_EAH
fE - AIAEAZBUAM I & M AR A AR fE X R
7}% o

B)BREEST

BZEZESENKY - WERAIZER EMmRA
ZHEGAEBESE FREES2EER
ERBEARNAIZEFEREREE « ¥/
ERFEREARNEE 2 A EZESIE -
WREEGREERLER - BZRZE®
SEBUFERTEETTARLELE © Paul
CONTOMICHALOS?E 4 K& = BB %) 5t £ 48
W FAREERBEREZESZER °



VENTUREPHARM LABORATORIES LIMITED Annual Report 2006

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

XEEBRSE

The audit committees hold meetings on quarterly basis.
During the twelve months ended 31 December 2006, the
audit committee held four meetings during the period
and reviewed the Group’s last year’'s annual report,
quarterly and interim financial results. The attendance

B

0 DH g oW

oo m SF

records of the aforementioned four audit committee

meetings are set out below:

[
E:mnlﬂb
11

>—:—~H%\

/Aslnéﬂz
B R B A
ERIHELREHINAT

—fEA - BEZERE
BEE%E@$;‘%IZE

X

o PR EZ

Attendance of member at
audit committee meetings during the year
FREZZEEHEZHER
Attendance no. Attendance rate

R # R
Members KB
WANG Hong Bo BN 4/4 100%
Paul CONTOMICHALOS Paul CONTOMICHALOS 4/4 100%
WU Ming Yu R A 4/4 100%

(9) DIRECTORS’ ACKNOWLEDGEMENT OF THEIR

RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The Directors acknowledge that they take full responsibility

in the preparation of the financial statements.

O EEHBRREAAUBERZEE

WA EHRE
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BAKER TILLY

HONG KONG LIMITED

Certified Public Accountants

IEREE R BT EIRAR]
12th Floor, China Merchants Tower
Shun Tak Centre

168-200 Connaught Road Central
Hong Kong

W T P 168-2001%%
fs 8 h O MR OK 12 5
Tel: +852 25250171

Fax: +852 2810 1417
www.bakertillyhk.com
enquiries@bakertillyhk.com

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT
TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF
VENTUREPHARM LABORATORIES LIMITED

(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of
Venturepharm Laboratories Limited (the “Company”) set out
on pages 54 to 143, which comprise the consolidated and
the Company’s balance sheets as at 31 December 2006,
and the consolidated income statement, the consolidated
statement of changes in equity and consolidated cash flow
statement for the year then ended, and a summary of principal
accounting policies and other explanatory notes.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF THE DIRECTORS FOR THE
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors are responsible for the preparation and the
true and fair presentation of these financial statements in
accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants and the disclosure requirements of the Hong
Kong Companies Ordinance. This responsibility includes
designing, implementing and maintaining internal control
relevant to the preparation and the true and fair presentation
of financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error; selecting and
applying appropriate accounting policies; and making
accounting estimates that are reasonable in the
circumstances.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF AUDITORS

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial
statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit in
accordance with Hong Kong Standards on Auditing issued
by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants.
Those standards require that we comply with ethical
requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain
reasonable assurance as to whether the financial statements

92 are free from material misstatement.
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An audit includes performing procedures to obtain audit
evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the financial
statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditors’
judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material
misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud
or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditors
consider internal control relevant to the Company’s and the
Group’s preparation and true and fair presentation of the
financial statements in order to design audit procedures that
are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose
of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the
Company’s internal control. An audit also includes evaluating
the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates made by the
directors, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the
financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit

opinion.
OPINION

In our opinion, the financial statements give a true and fair
view of the state of the Company’s and the Group’s affairs
as at 31 December, 2006 and of the Group’s profits and
cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with Hong
Kong Financial Reporting Standards and have been properly
prepared in accordance with the disclosure requirements of
the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

Baker Tilly Hong Kong Limited
Certified Public Accountants

Andrew David Ross

Practising Certificate number P01183
Hong Kong, 27 March 2007
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For the year ended 31 December 2006 HZEZE-—TZE A F+-_A=+—HIFE

2006 2005
—EERE —ETHEF
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
Bt & AR T ARET T
(Restated)
(&%)
Turnover = 6 57,052 42 157
Cost of sales H & B AR (24,766) (20,121)
Gross profit E! 32,286 22,036
Other revenue H I &5 7 5,631 1,140
Administrative expenses THRAX (17,542) (16,413)
Profit from operations & E A 20,375 6,763
Finance costs M ER 8 (1,549) (172)
Share of loss of associates FE(L B2 R Al B 18 (53) (188)
PROFIT BEFORE TAXATION B B A0 % 9 18,773 6,403
Income tax FriE i 11 (3,175) (887)
Profit for the year Nl 15,598 5,516
ATTRIBUTABLE TO: 1L :

Equity holders of the Company RAFRIERFEEA 15,563 5,644
Minority interest DER R = 35 (128)
15,598 5,516

EARNINGS PER SHARE BRER 27
Basic BN 4.32 cents 1.57 cents
Diluted g 4.14 cents 1.50 cents

All of the Group’s activities are classified as continuing.

The accompanying notes form an integral part of

these financial statements.

AEEMEXRBHARTERLE -

BEMIM E A% EM B mER AR D -
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As at 31 December 2006 R=—ZZT X F+-_A=+—H

2006 2005
Note —EEREF —ETRF
Bt 5 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBT T ARBT T
(Restated)
(E5)
NON-CURRENT ASSETS ERBEE
Property, plant and equipment Y - BB M 12 6,762 6,561
New drugs technology B R ir 13 8,107 2,600
Interest in associates L /N D s 15 3,235 4,047
Available-for-sales financial assets AEHEESREE 16 19,248 19,698
Unlisted investment JELTHIRE 17 9,396 9,396
16,748 42,302
CURRENT ASSETS RBEE
Work-in-progress £ 8 & 18 46,934 37,746
Trade receivables FE U Z 5 R K 19 18,023 9,483
Prepayments, deposits and FERARE - ek
other receivables H B YL 3k IE 20 17,823 19,437
Amounts due from related companies JfE U BE B N B) AR 21 1,296 1,759
Bank balances and cash RITEHREIRE 10,221 9,161
94,207 77,586
CURRENT LIABILITIES R B E &
Trade payables JE B 5 kI8 22 463 594
Accruals and other payables FEGTFRIE R H A BT RIE 23 1,085 4,878
Receipt in advance T8 Wz I8 5,507 4,262
Dividend payable JE - AR B 54 54
Interest-bearing borrowings AFEEE 24 6,451 3,000
Tax payable FEAS B 18 5,349 702
18,909 13,490
NET CURRENT ASSETS RBEEFE 75,388 64,096
NET ASSETS EEFRE 122,136 106,398
CAPITAL AND RESERVES BAR#E
Share capital % 25 25 38,160 38,160
Reserves f# & 26 80,887 65,184
Total equity attributable to equity NN
shareholders of the Company REAEGLEZBRE 119,047 103,344
MINORITY INTERESTS LR RER 3,089 3,054
TOTAL EQUITY N 122,136 106,398

Approved and authorised for issue by the board of directors

EFXZeCX _TTLF=-A-_TLRAHLLERR

on 27 March 2007: T2 -
Mr. William Xia GUO Dr. Maria Xuemei SONG WELEE RENHEE L
Director Director EE =

BEMIM A% EM B RER AR D -

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these
financial statements.
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As at 31 December 2006

R-EEAE+-—A=+—0

2006 2005
—EERE —ETHEF
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
Bt & AR T ARET T
(Restated)
(&%)

NON-CURRENT ASSETS IRBEE
Property, plant and equipment Y BB MEE 12 21 36
Interest in subsidiaries NCRD=S NI X 14 49,446 45,070
Available-for-sales financial assets AEHEESREE 16 19,248 19,698
68,715 64,804

CURRENT ASSETS REBEE
Other receivables H i & Uk 3k 18 3,388 2 596
Amount due from a related company JfE U BE B N A) IR 21 25 25
Bank balances and cash RITHEBR LIRS 298 248
3,711 2,869
CURRENT LIABILITIES REBAE

Other payables H & 5 3R I8 23 440 401
Receipts in advance T8 W 3R I8 20 48
Interest-bearing borrowings FFEEE 24 6,451 3,000
Dividend payable JE - A% B 54 54
6,965 3,503
NET CURRENT LIABILITIES REBAEFE (3,254) (634)
NET ASSETS EERE 65,461 64,170

CAPITAL AND RESERVES BAE &
Share capital [N 25 38,160 38,160
Reserves {1 26 27,301 26,010
TOTAL EQUITY 1R 7 A % 65,461 64,170

Approved and authorised for issue by the board of directors

on 27 March 2007:

Mr. William Xia GUO
Director

Dr. Maria Xuemei SONG
Director

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these

financial statements.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

e Ex

For the year ended 31 December 2006 HZEZE-—TZE A F+-_A=+—HIFE

Available-
for-sales
Heldto financial Statutory
Share-hased maturity assets enterprise
payment reserve Teserve expansion Minority
Share reserve BE  UREE Special Capital ~ Statutory fund  Retained interests
capital AR gy SREE reserve reserve reseve  EERE  eamings U | Total
R4 R R R HRRE H2RE EERE  BRES RERF  RRES ait
RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'O00  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000
ARETT ARETR ARETR ARBTT ARETR ARETT ARETR ARETR ARBTR ARETR ARBTR
At 1 January 20056 R-3TE5-A-H 38,160 - 5,600 - 6,039 903 3,334 6,517 43,992 3,190 107,635
Effect of adopting new RinesBR
accounting policy 2+
- HKAS 39 - A ERE 305 - - 7,200 - - - - - - - 7,200
- HKFRS 2 -BREBASENFR - 258 - - - - - - - - 258
Reversal of available- for-sales HEREE
financial assets upon disposal AfHESHER - - (5,500) - - - - - - - (5,500)
Transfer to reserves SEERERE = = = - - ©) 218 218 (673) ] (134)
Profit for the year REFRH - - - - - - - - 5,644 (128) 5,516
At 31 December 2005 R-ZEFLF
T-A=1+-H 38,160 258 7,200 - 6,039 894 3,612 6,795 48,963 3,004 114,975
Opening adjustment of BB EAE30%
HKAS 39 (note 16) EBE (H16) - - (7,200) - - - - - - - (7,200)
Change in fair value for AHEE
avallable- for-sales SHAEL
financial assets ATEE - - (1,377) - - - - - - (1.377)
At 1 January 2006 [restated) R-ZERE-A-H(E]) 38,160 258 - T 6039 894 3,612 6795 48963 305 106,308
Transfer to reserves ERZEE - - - - - - 191 191 (382) - -
Profit for the year REFRH - - - - - - - - 15,563 3 15,598
Change in fair value for AHREHE
avallable-for-sales SHEEL
financial assets ATERY - - 345 - - - - - - 345
Reversal of share based BERAHH
payment reserve i - (209) S S S S = = = = (205)
At 31 December 2006 RZBEXE
t-A=t+-H 38,160 53 = (1,082) 6,039 894 3,808 6,986 64,144 3,089 122,136

The accompanying

financial statements.

notes form

an integral part of these

PERIM A% SR B MR AR D -
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BERBEEARAR —FTNFFH

CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT

HEHERER

For the year ended 31 December 2006 HZEZE-—TZE A F+-_A=+—HIFE

2006 2005
—EEARE ZETREF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR T ARET T
(Restated)
(&)
CASH FLOWS FROM REEBCHESRE
OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Profit before taxation B %% A e A 18,773 6,403
Adjustments for: AT HRIBEZFHE
Recovery of bad debts 1 [B] 8 BR (929) =
Allowance for trade receivables FEWE 5 B 5k 4,798 4,594
Allowance for prepayments, ERNRIE - ZHek
deposits and other receivables o W 5k I8 B - 755
Allowance for amounts due from FEUR BEE A Al s B E
related parties - 100
Allowance for work-in-progress 1E 8 M 1,163 1,386
Depreciation and amortisation of M - EREELZ
property, plant and equipment 1 & K 5 529 367
Share-based payment expenses A& 19 15 5k B =2 (205) 258
Amortisation and impairment of BEEEZ
intangible assets #iE RORE 795 348
Gain on disposal of associate e E AR e (241) =
Share of loss of associate iR /NT T = 53 188
Exchange alignment on AEEEMEEZ
available-for-sales financial assets & 5, 58 B 795 -
Interest income B WA (2,057) (565)
Operating cash flows before LBESEHA
movements in working capital ZREBRERE 23,474 13,834
Increase in work-in-progress £ 2 fp 38 0 (14,128) (13,199)
Increase in trade receivables FE W E 5 BR 5} 35 N (12,409) (2,564)
Decrease/(increase) in prepayments, TERRIE - e hHAMm
deposits and other receivables JE Uk BR TR A (18 An) 1,971 (2,517)
Decrease in amounts due from JE Wt R 3 A R 5K I8
related companies Vo 463 533
(Decrease)/increase in trade payables FENE SRR CRD) /& (131) 533
(Decrease)/increase in accruals and FE 5T 3R T8 I E b B < 5RIB
other payables R A>) /48 hn (3,793) 2,872
Increase in receipt-in-advance T8 U FRIE 12 N 1,245 541
Cash (used in)/generated from operations KZ XK (FiAH) E4LXRHE (3,308) 33
PRC enterprise income tax BiE (B #)
recovered/(paid) RS R 1,472 (639)
Net cash used in operating activities RETBFMARESFE (1,836) (606)
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CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT
HREEHERER

For the year ended 31 December 2006 HZEZE-—TZE A F+-_A=+—HIFE

2006 2005
—EERE —ETHEF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR T ARET T
(Restated)
(&%)
CASH FLOWS FROM RETFHZ2HERE
INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Decrease in pledged bank deposits ELBEHEMPIRITFR - 9,811
Increase in unlisted investment HINELEMEZE - (3,316)
Purchase of property, plant BEME  BEREXE
and equipment (2,268) (1,788)
Purchase of new drugs technology B8 B 7 BB i (40) (137)
Increase in investment in associate AL /N 1 = - (2,000)
Increase in available-for-sales HRENHIEESHEENE
investments - (4,522)
Bank interest received B ERITH B 66 240
Interest received on available-for-sales AEEE SR EE 2 FTIF &
financial assets 1,687 325
Proceeds from disposal of property, HEWE  BE RKEMFKIE
plant and equipment - 2
Increase in interest-bearing borrowings AT B8 E 0 3,451 3,000
Net cash generated from KEEHER S FE
investing activities 2,896 1,615
CASH FLOWS FROM MEETH
FINANCING ACTIVITIES ZEERE
Contribution to minority shareholder B AR BB EEETE
of a subsidiary - (8)
Net cash used in financing activities BMETBHARSFE - (8)
NET INCREASE IN CASH AND BHeRES
CASH EQUIVALENTS ZEYIZNFEHE 1,060 1,001
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS FOzEE
AT BEGINNING OF THE YEAR LREESEEY 9,161 8,160
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS FHRZES
AT END OF THE YEAR FHREEEY 10,221 9,161
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BERBEEARAE —FTNFFH

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
M % & R Mt

For the year ended 31 December 2006

1.

CORPORATE INFORMATION

The Company was incorporated in the Cayman Islands
on 21 May 2002 as an exempted company with limited
liability under the Companies Law (2002 Revision) of the
Cayman Islands. The address of its registered office is
Scotia Centre, 4th Floor, PO Box 2804, George Town,
Grand Cayman, Cayman Islands, and its principal place
of business is disclosed in “Corporate Information” of the
annual report.

The principal activity of the Company is investment
holding. The principal activities of its subsidiaries and
associates are set out in notes 14 and 15 respectively.

The financial statements are presented in Renminbi
(“RMB”), rounded to the nearest thousand, which is the
functional currency of the Company.

SUMMARY OF THE EFFECTS OF CORRECTION OF
ACCOUNTING ERROR

In prior year, the Group classified its two investment
bonds (note 16) acquired during 2005 as “Held-to-
maturity” financial assets but measured as available-for-
sales financial asset at a fair value of RMB28,275,000
from original aggregate costs of RMB21,075,000. As a
result, RMB7,200,000 was adjusted to held-to-maturity
reserve to reflect the increase in fair value. Hence, the
financial statements classification of these financial assets
in prior year was not in accordance with the Hong Kong
Accounting Standard 39 (HKAS 39).

In addition, the fair value of these two investment bonds
as at 31 December 2005 based on reliable market value
information available should be lower than the original
aggregate costs. Accordingly, a prior year adjustment to
reverse the RMB7,200,000 from held-to-maturity reserve
and correct the fair value at 31 December 2005 to
RMB19,698,000 was made in accordance with Hong
Kong Accounting Standard 8 (HKAS 8) and HKAS 39.

HE-ZTZAF+-_A=1+—HLFE

DNAEHR

ARAR_ZEZ_FEFA-_+—HREMAS
BERARZE(CZEE_FEBIIR EHAEHS
AR AEREEREEAA - Ha i
= 7 il & Scotia Centre, 4th Floor, PO Box
2804, George Town, Grand Cayman,
Cayman Islands -+ i £ = Z & Z b B i 5 R
REHRIRNFER]A o

ARBZEBEBREBEER - EWBRA
REERRZEBEBDRENK E14R
5 e

AMBHREREARRBNDEEEARER
2 WHEEREONTAH -

ENEREEERE

EEE  AEEHFE -_ZTTRAFEAZHILE
BERF (Mde) BEABEINHIemE
E B2 RBBEKANARE
21,075,00070 1 = A F B A K #28,275,000
TZAHEESREE - At - HEZHR
EWIEE AR % 7,200,0007T 2 A - U
BRAFEZEN - Mt EFEEZSE/H
BEZVBRERSEH ZHBB ST ERE
W (BB G ERIEIGR) TF/F o

BN - RIBAETEER  RZTETRFT
—A=1+—8 Wit EEFZATERE
ERRIGBAAR - Bt - BIBEB AR
Ek (FE G &R EH) BB ST AR
FEIRIEL LFEAE - BiIFEDBMREED
B AR¥7,200,000 WEE-_ZTZTHEF
+ZA=+—HAFEAARY19,698,000
=
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
M % & R Mt

For the year ended 31 December 2006 & Z _—ZZ

RE+T-A=+—HIL

FE

2. SUMMARY OF THE EFFECTS OF CORRECTION OF 2. SEERFLEERE &)
ACCOUNTING ERROR (continued)
As a result, the opening adjustment on fair value of Eit - AFEEDARKA1,377,0007T 2 F
RMB1,377,000 was identified in addition to the reversal ¥R T # Bl A R #7,200,0007T 2 £ 7
of RMB7,200,000 and therefore adjusted in the available- R WAHHESHEERBE MM ELBE
for-sales financial assets reserve to reflect the correct NRBRERMEER_TTRAF+_A="1—
carrying amount of the financial assets as at 31 December AZEREREE LlesERmRnAEER
2005. The financial effects of the above accounting error BAEFE B ERMNT
for current and prior years are summarised below:
2006 2005
—EERE —ETRF
RMB RMB
AR® T AR T
Decrease in available-for-sales financial assets A {855 € At
in balance sheet BEERD - (8,577,000)
Total effects on equity AT ERTE - (8,577,000)
SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3. FEEHHEME
The principal accounting policies applied in the REZEGRAVBRERMAEZZESFEERSE
preparation of these consolidated financial statements AT - BREBRAEIN - ZFBERERIE

are set out below. These policies have been consistently
applied to all the years presented, unless otherwise
stated.

The Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
(“HKICPA”) has issued a number of new and revised Hong
Kong Financial Reporting Standards (HKFRS) and Hong
Kong Accounting Standards (HKAS) (collectively referred
to as new HKFRSs) which are first effective or available
for early adoption for the current period of the Group
and the Company.

ARMEBEZREE -

BEGHAGE RS EMI REERE
BB RELE REB G ER (RHEHE
BHMBHELED)  NEBERARFRAE
FAEE B R A HERRTIRA -
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BERBEEARAE —FTNFFH

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
M % & R Mt

For the year ended 31 December 2006

3.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

With effect from 1 January 2006, in accordance with the
amendments to HKAS 39 in respect of financial guarantee
contracts, all financial guarantees issued are accounted
for as financial liabilities and measured initially at fair value,
where the fair value can be reliably measured and
thereafter stated at the amortised cost. Further details of
the new policy are set out in note 3(x).

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with
the HKFRSs requires the use of certain critical accounting
estimates. It also requires management to exercise its
judgement in the process of applying the company’s
accounting policies. The estimates and the underlying
assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions
to accounting estimates are recognised in the period in
which the estimate is revised if the revision affects only
that period, or in the period of the revision and future
periods if the revision affects both current and future
periods.

The estimates and assumptions made by management in
the application of HKFRSs that have a significant risk of
causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of
assets and liabilities within the next financial year are
discussed in note 5.

No early adoption of the following new Standards or
Interpretations that have been issued but are not yet
effective. The company is in the process of making an
assessment of what the impact of these amendments,
new standards and new interpretations are expected to
be in the period of initial applications. So far it has
concluded that the adoption of such standards or
interpretations is unlikely to have a significant impact on
the company’s results of operations and financial position.

HE-ZTZAF+-_A=1+—HLFE

3.

FTESFTHEBE &)

RIBFEE G EAEIRBEHIBERELD
2R B-TETERFE-—A—RE - WRF
BERERI A8 - PTA R ISERITFIE
TREBERAFEARLERZEHEKAT
AR o R 2 et B R M ES(X) ©

RENEBRBUBRERN M BHRRFR
ERETHEREHEE  TREEEEERE
AARBEABRBRETERHE - RIAR
st R ERRRE T TIARM o MEHEE
ZETRZEX BB AR EFESE(FH
BRI 2 HARMRER ¢ (H{E 5T 8 & A MoK R EIE
BAFTE  BEFELER 2 BE &R R

BEEARREHEENBBEN TEMKFE
NHEEERRMAT BB HRE LRI FD
ERBAEZAF RRE - R ESA® -

AT B8 M B M AR AR ST AR B R &
BRFRM - NATIERHARFIER ~ #E
A BR e S B ERRAREER
FESHBRERS RN FMERX
BEAKAEHARALEXERMBARR
ERERTE -
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
M % & R Mt

For the year ended 31 December 2006 #HE—_ZZT NG+ _A=+—HLEFE

HK(IFRIC) - Int 5

HK(IFRIC) - Int 6

HKAS 1, HKAS 27 and

HKFRS 3 (Amendments)

Rights to interests arising from decommissioning,

restoration and environment rehabilitation funds

Liabilities arising from participating in a specific market -

waste electrical and electronic equipment
As a consequence of the Hong Kong Companies
(Amendment) Ordinance 2005

ZRe)-HRE4H

ER(ERMHESRE
Z8g)-iRE5H

ER(ERMHESRE
Z8g)-HRE6H

ERQTENR N AR
ERES VL
EREMBRS LR
CHEY

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3. FEEHHEBME (&)
(Continued)
HKAS 19 (Amendment) ~ Employee benefits - Actuarial gains and losses, group EREHERZ19% EERTI-REER  SEEREE
plans and disclosures (B3T%)
HKAS 21 (Amendment) ~ The effect of changes in foreign exchange rates - Net EREHERZUR EXZg e - BN EHARE
investment in a foreign operation (B3T%)
HKAS 39 (Amendment) ~ Cash flow hedge accounting of forecast intragroup A eERE39% BHSERAGRR 7 RS REHH
transactions (B3T%) eHREA
HKAS 39 (Amendment)  The fair value option B e ERE9% NTEER
CHES
HKAS 39 and HKFRS 4 Financial instruments: Recognition and measurement and EREHEAZEORR SBIA:RARGERRRAH-
(Amendments) insurance contracts - Financial guarantee contracts B BREEH HBEREY
245 (BT %)
HKFRS 6 Exploration for and evaluation of mineral resources BB RS ER E6% %Eﬁiﬁ LBRRETE
HK(IFRIC) - Int 4 Determining whether an arrangement contains a lease 5 (ARUBRERE ERZHREAGHE

BREMF BRRRRBEACHEL
a2
PERTEHS-BRTNRETRAE
At

e S SEINGCHI N
il H|
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BERBEEARAR —FTNFFH

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
M % & R Mt

For the year ended 31 December 2006 #HE—_ZZT NG+ _A=+—HLEFE

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

As at the date of the approval of these financial
statements, the following standards and interpretations
were in issue but not yet effective:

HKAS 1 (Amendment)  Note a Capital Disclosures

HKFRS 7 Note a Financial Instruments - Disclosures

HK(IFRIC) - Int 7 Note b Applying the restatement
approach under HKAS 29 -
Financing reporting in
hyperinflationary economies

HK(IFRIC) - Int 8 Note ¢ Scope of HKFRS 2

HK(IFRIC) - Int 9 Note d Reassessment of embedded

derivatives

HK(IFRIC) - Int 10 Note e Interim financial reporting and
impairment

HK(IFRIC) - Int 11 Note f Group and Treasury Share
Transactions

Note a : effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2007
Note b: effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 March 2006
Note c: effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 May 2006

Note d: effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 June 2006
Note e: effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 November 2006
Note f: effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 March 2007

The Group has begun to consider the potential impact of
the above standards and amendments, but is not yet in
a position to determine whether these HKFRSs would
have a significant impact on how its results of operations
and financial positions are prepared and presented. These
standards and amendments may result in changes in the
future as to how the results and financial position are

prepared and presented.

S BRBE (#)

Rz L8 %MK ER

M ER R BEMT

BREHENZIS

é%%%ﬁ¢$W%wﬁ

Bk (BRHBRED
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%8 )‘*‘%%S%
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%89)-i %%9%
ER(ERMHESRE
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ER(ERMHESRE

fiia
Hiza
itstb

ftitc

Brzd

fite

it

BEH ERMERE

ARHE (BTH)
ERIA-HE

ST BRSNS
LEJIFA - B RE
EATZ8BE g

ERMBETERRR
ZEE
EffBRAAITETIA
R R A E

SERERRIRS
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

it B ® = M

For the year ended 31 December 2006

G

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(a)

(b)

Basis of preparation

The consolidated financial statements have been
prepared in accordance with Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards which also include
Interpretations issued by the HKICPA, accounting
principles generally accepted in Hong Kong and the
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance and applicable disclosure provisions of The
Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on GEM of
the Stock Exchange (the “GEM Listing Rules”). A
summary of significant accounting policies followed
by the Group and the Company in the preparation of

the financial statements is set out below:

The financial statements have been prepared under
the historical cost convention except for certain
financial assets which are stated at fair values, as
explained in the significant accounting policies, set
out below.

The Group’s books and records are maintained in
Renminbi (“RMB”), the currency in which the majority

of the Group’s transactions is denominated.
Basis of consolidation
The consolidated financial statements incorporated

the financial statements of the Company and its

subsidiaries made up to 31 December each year.

BE_ZTRET_A=1t—RHLLFE

3. FESHEEBE (#)
(a) MBEXE
AR BHRRDERBEEGTMAE
M 2BEMBREEN(TMEBER
B)  BEELAREFRE - HEERAK

(b) &

PIZRBERE MBI ERES ET
MAI(TEIZER EMARAN) 2 @A E %
XS - AEBERARARREMEH
KERAZEZEABERBAMT ¢

BTN EE G BRTEE - MBH
RERETUNRFEINRZEHEER
E S AR R B -

REBEZRA RREFHEUAAREFTE -
AEBRBORGTNRAREEE -
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Bf ¥ | R M &
For the year ended 31 December 2006 #HE—_ZZT NG+ _A=+—HLEFE

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

3. FESHEEBE (#)

(b) Basis of consolidation (Continued) (b) ZEEE (&)

66

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the
effects of the Group Reorganisation which has been
accounted for by using merger accounting.

The acquisition method of accounting is used to
account for the acquisition of subsidiaries by the
Group. The cost of an acquisition is measured as the
fair value of the assets given, equity instruments
issued and liabilities incurred or assumed at the date
of exchange, plus costs directly attributable to the
acquisition. ldentifiable assets acquired and liabilities
and contingent liabilities assumed in a business
combination are measured initially at their fair values
at the acquisition date, irrespective of the extent of
any minority interest. The excess of the cost of
acquisition over the fair value of the Group’s share of
the identifiable net assets acquired is recorded as
goodwill. If the cost of acquisition is less than the fair
value of the net assets of the subsidiary acquired,
the difference is recognised directly in the income
statement.

The results of subsidiaries acquired or disposed of
during the year are included in the consolidated
income statement from the effective date of
acquisition or up to the effective date of disposal, as
appropriate.

All significant inter-company transactions, balances,
income and expenses within the Group are eliminated
on consolidation.

REVMBHRREEAHEEFARE
BEHZEE -

AEBRWESTHEBAMKEN B AR
AR - WBRASRRBAHRKSESR
E BETRAIARMELEIAESR
BEZRFE MEBEEREFTRAE - %
GaHRBAZCHENEEREKEZE
EMHIARE  BRREBERHRZAF
Bt E - TEtREFADBIRRER - K
BRABEASEREBACDHEINEE
FEAFEZEZBINEEEARK - il
BAAERBANBERARZEEFER
FE AEERKREREREZRE -

RAFERNBAREENB AR 2%
B RRBZAERARERELEZE
A (ER) FFARERER -

FEEERNARMZEERS - & -
WARBEHERGEAREBEMH -
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

it B ® = M

For the year ended 31 December 2006

G

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(b) Basis of consolidation (Continued)

(c)

Minority interests in the net assets of consolidated
subsidiary companies are presented separately from
the Group’s equity therein. Minority interests in the
net assets consist of the amount of those interests
at the date of the original business combination and
the minority’s share of changes in equity since the
date of the combination. Losses applicable to the
minority in excess of the minority’s interest in the
subsidiary company’s equity are allocated against the
interests of the Group except to the extent that the
minority has a binding obligation and is able to make
an additional investment to cover the losses.

Investments in subsidiaries

A subsidiary company is an entity controlled by the
Group. Control exists when the Group has the power,
directly or indirectly, to govern the financial and
operating policies of an entity so as to obtain benefits
from its activities; to appoint or remove the majority
of the members of the board of directors; or to cast
majority of votes at the meetings of the board of
directors.

The results of subsidiary companies are included in
the Company’s income statement to the extent of
dividends received and receivable. The Company’s
investments in subsidiary companies are stated at

cost less any impairment losses.

HE-ZTZAF+-_A=1+—HLFE

3.

FTESFTHEBE &)

(b) IREEE (&)

(c)

BHARZHMBRARZFEET L HK
RESDEAKEEE Z RAE DD H
25  MEEFEEZLBBRRERE
BRREAZEZKEHBERZEREZE
KB A G B HAR DB REE IR
BaZ®  ERRNIEERRBB D
PR B A R 2 AN 2 2 B 1R TS B
AEE S EE  EREODBIRE
BENRN 2 BB REHBRIMELRE N
EERARI -

REBRARZRE

MBARSAREEG2EE - E4AK
EERERIAERE-RERZMY
REERR M BEXHESF
o AIEMEBREEEARLEKE -
SHEEZE TR LERZERERANK
RASBEAERZEE -

MBARZEENEKREER ZRER
REFARRRYER - ARRRHER
A ZRE IR A ER EERBEER
51 B ©
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BERBEEARAE —FTNFFH

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
M % & R Mt

For the year ended 31 December 2006 #HE—_ZZT NG+ _A=+—HLEFE

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3. FEEHHEBME (&)
(Continued)
(d) Interests in associates (d) ABE AR 2R
An associated company is an entity in which the e AR RAASERGE B KE
equity interest is held for long term and significant WHEEBRTHEEAZE N CERE -

influence is exercised in its management.

An investment in an associated company is accounted REEERAIRE NN RS FERGEE
for in the consolidated financial statements under the ISR R AR - BRI AR - HEE
equity method of accounting and is initially recorded AEEKEBERANESERBEHEEESE
at cost and the carrying amount is increased or EFEzMHBEZE{mEmaioRnd -

decreased to recognise the Group’s share of the net
assets of the investee after the date of acquisition.

The income statement reflects the Group’s share of WankREFARSE D GHERRZ
the post-acquisition results of the associated BAREE (REERENRESE) - 76
companies for the year, including any impairment loss. BEBERA  REERR =TI
In the consolidation balance sheet, interests in REBEBDEHERRFEE - BB
associates are stated at the Groups’ share of net SRERE(WREE AR ERAREA
assets of the associates, plus goodwill/less negative B sl B BAWRA)  REME
goodwill in so far as it has not been written off/ HAREBIEYER - B RSB EGE S
amortised, released to income, less identified ARIZEEBREERR - BIAREEG
impairment loss. When the Group’s share of losses ZHMERRZERRAT  BAKEN
exceeds its interests in the associated company, the SHERE—FEE  EAEEC HZH
Group’s interest in the associated company is ERAREETERREBEEERI ©

reduced to nil and recognition of further losses is
discontinued unless the Group has incurred
obligations or guaranteed obligations in respect of
the associated company.
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3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(d)

(e)

Interests in associates (Continued)

Unrealised gains arising from transactions between
the Group and its associated companies are
eliminated to the extent of the Group’s interest in the
associated company. Unrealised losses are eliminated
in the same way as unrealised gains, but only to the
extent that there is no evidence of impairment.

Foreign currencies

Items included in the financial statements of each of
the Group’s entities are measured using the currency
of the primary economic environment in which the
The

consolidated financial statements are presented in

entity operates (the “functional currency”).

Renminbi (“RMB”), which is the Group’s functional

and presentation currency.

Foreign currency transactions other than RMB are
translated using the exchange rate prevailing at the
dates of the transaction. Foreign exchange gains and
losses resulting from the settlement of such
transactions and from the translation at year end
exchange rates of monetary assets and liabilities
denominated in foreign currencies are recognised in
the income statement.

BE_ZTRET_A=1t—RHLLFE

3.

(d)

(e)

FTESFTHEBE &)

REE QR zERE ()

AEBEABERTZHAXZAEER

FIRFE 2K - MUAREBRE LR
RIZHEDAR REBEREBIEBZEERE
EAREIRFERR - BRENLERE
ZIERTET o

Sh i

e

AEERERBZUMBRRAEE A
B DRZIEBKEMECTERER
BB ([DeEes® e - AKEZ
DEEREHREB/ARE (TARE]) -
HAEMBBRRAARKZS -

BRARBINZINERZHBIHERZ
ROTEXBER/DEEE - ARFERS
RENZEEBR ZERFIBAINEFHE
REBEENBEMEEZEN B
B e R MR o
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3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

3. FESHEEBE (#)

(e) S (&)

(e) Foreign currencies (Continued)

70

The results and financial position of all the group
entities (none of which has the currency of a
hyperinflationary economy) that have a functional
currency different from the presentation currency are
translated into the presentation currency as follows:

() assets and liabilities for each balance sheet
presented are translated at the closing rate at
the date of that balance sheet;

(i) income and expenses for each income statement
are translated at average exchange rates (unless
this average is not a reasonable approximation
of the cumulative effect of the rates prevailing on
the transaction dates, in which case income and
expenses are translated at the dates of the

transactions); and

(iii) all resulting exchange differences are recognised
as a separate component of equity.

On consolidation, exchange differences arising from
the translation of the net investment in foreign entities,
and of borrowings and other currency instruments
designated as hedges of such investments, are taken
to shareholders’ equity. When a foreign operation is
sold, such exchange differences are recognised in
the income statement as part of the gain or loss on

sale.

SEETHENREREZREE TR
LER(WFRBRREECER) 2XE
RFBHRR - AT HABRERERE

W

) BBEERABRAEZIEERARE
BEREAZRMEXRRE

(i) FRERZWARIE  BRFHE
R|E - B FHELFZZFRS
FHBTEXARBYRZAEN
BERON - ERBERT - WARH
BRZXHBEHBE &

(i) FTAEEEEER ZBBERRK
AIBETBILIAR -

REREE  BRENBIBERZFRE
PREAERZRNMEERESDZEFR
BrRERAMEETAZER T
ABRER - HEBINEKR  RFE
REBRBERERSHERZLEE
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3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(e) Foreign currencies (Continued)

(f)

Goodwill and fair value adjustments arising on the
acquisition of a foreign entity are treated as assets
and liabilities of the foreign entity and translated at
the closing rate. Exchange differences arising are
recognised in the translation reserve.

Revenue recognition

Revenues from transfer of new drug development and
formulation data are recognised upon transfer of risks
and rewards of ownership, which generally coincides
with the time when the compound and data are
delivered to customers.

Revenues from contracted research and development,
pharmaceutical application, registration and testing
services are recognised to the extent of the milestone
payments earned in accordance with the applicable
performance requirements and contractual terms and,
where appropriate, as the related costs are incurred.
Payments received that are related to future
performance are deferred and recorded as revenues
as they are earned over the specified future

performance periods.

HE-ZTZAF+-_A=1+—HLFE

3.

==

EEHBEME @)

(e) S (&)

WEBIEECHMELRERAFEHAE
EEBNEBZEENABRE WX
WhmERBE - TEAZERZBNIER
HREmAER

Wy 35 72 52

HeEEmsMAE AR ERmMEE Y
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R —RBLELEYVEERRTEREZR
A e

HERT AR - BB E -« mEfft RO
RBEMEEZ W - HERIFERZE
TR E BB KRR BRER 2 2 B3 30 %
BRAKAEELHRE (WER) T AR -
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3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

3. FESHEEBE (#)

(f) Revenue recognition (Continued) (H WwzEmwR (&)

T B0 8 5 W s T B Z AR FRR T

Subject to the terms as stated in the technology

72

transfer agreements and the buyers’ success in
commercialisation of the products to which the
technology transferred is applied, the Group may
receive additional royalty income or profit sharing
income in the future. Should there be any royalty
income or sharing of profit, they will be recognised
when the right to receive the income is established.

Service income is recognised when services are
provided.

Royalty income on drugs produced by third parties
using the Group’s drug technology is recognised
when the right to receive is established.

Sales of goods are recognised when goods are

delivered and title has passed.

Interest income from a financial asset is accrued on
a time basis, by reference to the principal outstanding

and at the interest rate applicable.

Dividend income from investments is recognised when
the shareholders’ right to receive payment have been
established.

HETRYKEEREERRMZERR
mit - ZANER B A] 0 oK 2R W BRSNS R R
WA SR D Z WA o 5B E AR AP
WA RS ZF - AIRBEEBEREEZ
REFIRERE L B T IARERR ©

AR 75 WA TR 1 AR 7% s B R

AE=TERANRERERMEESER
M EE A 2 15 B AR M TP i ST MK R A N
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3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(g) Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment, are stated at cost
less depreciation and accumulated impairment losses.
The initial cost of an asset comprises its purchase
price and any directly attributable costs of bringing
the assets to its working condition and location for
its intended use.

Depreciation is provided to write off the cost of
property, plant and equipment less accumulated
impairment losses to the estimated residual value,
over their estimated useful lives, using the straight
line method, at the following rates per annum:

Leasehold improvements 20%
Machinery 10% — 20%
Furniture, fixture and equipment 10% - 20%
Motor vehicles 20%

The gain or loss arising from the disposal or retirement
of an asset is determined as the difference between
the sale proceeds and the carrying amount of the
asset and is recognised in the income statement on
the date of retirement or disposal.

3.

EEHBEME @)

(9) = BEREE

ME - BE RRE TR AT E A R
RIPBEBEAKR BEEKAERREH
B BB R AL B EE B A fE KRR
WEIERER G ERBERA -

FEIRMZE - MFE RREZ e rE
B 4F A DA B AR A 8 H B SR 2 5 E
BREMASKENE  HIFEF XN
T

HERE 20%
1= 10% - 20%
R - HERRE 10% - 20%
E 20%

HEXRBEEEMS 2 WaEE - A
HEXREEMSHRAEAEKREECER
BEE - YRHERHmERBERERA
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
M % & R Mt

For the year ended 31 December 2006

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(h) New drug technology development costs

(i)

Expenditure on research activities on new drug
technology is recognised as an expense in the period
in which it is incurred.

An internally-generated asset arising from new drug
technology development expenditure is recognised
only if it is anticipated that the development costs
incurred on a clearly-defined project will be recovered
through future commercial activity. The resultant asset
is amortised on a straight line basis over its useful
life. Where no internally-generated intangible asset
can be recognised, new drug technology development
expenditure is recognised as an expense in the period
in which it is incurred.

Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised
on the consolidation balance sheet when a group
entity becomes a party to the contractual provisions
of the instrument. Financial assets and financial
liabilities are initially measured at fair value.
Transaction costs that are directly attributable to the
acquisition or issue of financial assets and financial
liabilities (other than financial assets and financial
liabilities at fair value through profit and loss) are
added to or deducted from the fair value of the
financial assets or financial liabilities, as appropriate,
on initial recognition. Transaction costs directly
attributable to the acquisition of financial assets or
financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss

are recognised immediately in profit or loss.

BE_ZTRET_A=1t—RHLLFE

3.
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3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3.
(Continued)

FTESFTHEBE &)

(i) Financial instruments (Continued) (i) £@MI A (&)

Financial assets

The Group’s financial assets are classified into one
of the four categories, including financial assets at
fair value through profit or loss, loans and receivables,
held-to-maturity investments and available-for-sales
financial assets. All regular way purchases or sales
of financial assets are recognised and derecognised
on a trade date basis. Regular way purchases or
sales are established by regulation or convention in
the marketplace. The accounting policies adopted in
respect of each category of financial assets are set
out below.

(@) Financial assets at fair value through profit or
loss

Financial assets at fair value through profit or
loss has two subcategories, including financial
assets held for trading and those designated
as at fair value through profit or loss on initial
recognition.

AEEZEREED B/ T EEER
Hepz— BREEATFEIIRIEERR
RPREZEMEE  BERREBUEK
B RKEZRIBBEZRERAHLES
BMEE FECTHBEILESREE
X ZBEEERRBUHHER - LF
BEAHESREENERMBSHRER
BOET  FIRANESBEREES
RS ST ERER BN T3 e

(@ BAFEIRREBRERTEREZ

BAVFEIGRRERaRTERIEZ
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3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(i) Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

(@) Financial assets at fair value through profit or
loss (Continued)

A financial asset other than a financial asset
held for trading may be designated as at fair
value through profit or loss upon initial
recognition if:

° such designation eliminates or
significantly reduces a measurement or
recognition inconsistency that would
otherwise arise; or

° the financial asset forms part of a group
of financial assets or financial liabilities
or both, which is managed and its
performance is evaluated on a fair value
basis, in accordance with the Group’s
documented risk management or
investment strategy, and information
about the grouping is provided internally

on that basis; or

° it forms part of a contract containing one
or more embedded derivatives, and
HKAS 39 permits the entire combined
contract (asset or liability) to be
designated as at fair value through profit

or loss.

FTESFTHEBE &)

SRIA (&)

TREE (&)
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3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(i) Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

()

Financial assets at fair value through profit or
loss (Continued)

At each balance sheet date subsequent to initial
recognition, financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss are measured at fair value, with
changes in fair value recognised directly in profit
or loss in the period in which they arise.

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative
financial assets with fixed or determinable
payments that are not quoted in an active
market. They arise when the Group provides
money, goods or services directly to a debtor
with no intention of trading the receivable. They
are included in current assets, except for
maturities greater than 12 months after the
balance sheet date. These are classified as non-

current assets.

HE-ZTZAF+-_A=1+—HLFE

3.
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For the year ended 31 December 2006

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(i) Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

(©)

Held-to-maturity investments

Dated debt securities that the company has the
positive ability and intention to hold to maturity
are classified as held-to-maturity securities.
Held-to-maturity securities are initially
recognised in the balance sheet at fair value
plus transaction costs. Subsequently, they are
stated in the balance sheet at amortised costs

less impairment losses.

Available-for-sales financial assets

Investments in securities that do not have a
quoted market price in an active market and
whose fair value cannot be reliably measured
are classified as available-for-sale securities and
are stated at cost less impairment losses. The
changes in fair value are recognised in equity,
except for impairment losses and, in the case
of monetary items such as debt securities,
foreign exchange gains and losses which are
recognised directly in the income statement.
Where these investments are interest-bearing,
interest calculated using the effective interest
method is recognised in the income statement.
When these investments are derecognised, the
cumulative gain or loss previously recognised
directly in equity is recognised in the income
statement.

HE-ZTZAF+-_A=1+—HLFE
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3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(i

Impairment of assets

Internal and external sources of information are
reviewed at each balance sheet date to determine
whether there is any indication of impairment of
assets, or whether there is any indication that an
impairment loss previously recognised no longer exists
or may have decreased. If any such indication exists,
the recoverable amount of the asset is estimated. An
impairment loss is recognised whenever the carrying
amount of an asset exceeds its recoverable amount.
An impairment loss is charged to the income
statement in the year in which it arises, unless the
asset is carried at a revalued amount, when the
impairment loss is accounted for in accordance with

the relevant policy for that revalued asset.

(i) Calculation of recoverable amount

The recoverable amount of an asset is the higher
of its net selling price and value in use. The net
selling price is the amount obtainable from the
sale of an asset in an arm’s length transaction
while value in use is the present value of
estimated future cash flows expected to arise
from the continuing use of any asset and from
its disposal at the end of its useful life. Where an
asset does not generate cash inflows largely
independent of those from other assets, the
recoverable amount is determined for the smallest
group of asset that generates cash inflows

independently (i.e. a cash-generating unit).

HE-ZTZAF+-_A=1+—HLFE
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3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3. FESHBEME (8
(Continued)

() EERME (&)

(i) Impairment of assets (Continued)

(ii) 7% [5] )&t 15 /&5 18

(i) Reversals of impairment losses

In respect of assets other than goodwill, an
impairment loss is reversed if there has been
change in the estimates used to determine the
recoverable amount. An impairment loss of
goodwill is reversed only if the loss was caused
by a specific external event of an exceptional
nature that is not expected to recur, and the
increase in recoverable amount relates the
reversal effect of that specific event.

A reversal of impairment losses is limited to the
asset’s carrying amount that would have been
determined had no impairment loss been
recognised in prior years. Reversals of impairment
losses are credited to the income statement in

the year in which the reversals are recognised.

EENINZEEMS » HERNA
BEAKEEEZAFREZHRE
B AEBOBERSE - BEZR
BEEREREERBHRIT @/ REL
ZERIMESHMES - BAllE
THEBARZFRE 2 mig
me mEREE -

HMEBRZERNEETSBBERER
PATE 4 2 3 48 7 57 R0 (8 /&5 18 M A B
BE<EEREE - BREBBEZE
Ol &N EREL 2 FE AW
% o



VENTUREPHARM LABORATORIES LIMITED Annual Report 2006

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
M % & R Mt

For the year ended 31 December 2006 #HE—_ZZT NG+ _A=+—HLEFE

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(k) Impairment of financial assets

The Group assesses at each balance sheet date
whether there is any objective evidence that a financial
asset or group of financial assets is impaired.

Assets carried at amortised cost

If there is objective evidence that an impairment loss
on receivables carried at amortised cost has been
incurred, the amount of the loss is measured as the
difference between the asset’s carrying amount and
the present value of estimated future cash flows
(excluding future credit losses that have not been
incurred) discounted at the financial asset’s original
effective interest rate (i.e. the effective interest rate
computed at initial recognition). The carrying amount
of the asset is reduced either directly or through the
use of an allowance account. The amount of the

impairment loss is recognised in income statement.

The Group first assesses whether objective evidence
of impairment exists individually for financial assets
that are individual significant, and individually or
collectively for financial assets that are not individual
significant. If it is determined that no objective
evidence of impairment exists for an individually
assessed financial assets, whether significant or not,
the asset is included in a group of financial assets
with similar credit risk characteristics and that group
is collectively assessed for impairment. Assets that
are individually assessed for impairment and for which
an impairment loss is or continues to be recognised
are not included in a collective assessment of
impairment.
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3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3. FESHBEME (8
(Continued)

(k) Impairment of financial assets (Continued) k) eRMEERME (&)

82

Assets carried at amortised cost (Continued)

If, in a subsequent period, the amount of the
impairment loss decreases and the decrease can be
related objectively to an event occurring after
impairment was recognised, the previous recognised
impairment loss is reversed. Any subsequent reversal
of an impairment loss is recognised in the income
statement, to the extent that the carrying amount of
the asset does not exceed its amortised cost at the
reversal date.

Assets carried at cost

If there is objective that an impairment loss on an
unquoted equity instrument that is not carried at fair
value because its fair value cannot be reliably
measured, the amount of the impairment loss is
measured as the difference between the asset’s
carrying amount and the present value of estimated
future cash flows discounted at the current market
rate of return for a similar financial asset where the
effect of discounting is material. Impairment losses

on these assets are not reversed.
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3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3. FEEHHEBME (&)
(Continued)
(I) Related parties () BEAL

Two parties are considered to be related if one party
has ability, directly or indirectly to control the other
party are exercise significant influence over the other
party in making financial and operating decision.
Parties are also considered to be related if they are
subject to common control or common significant
influence.

(m) Work-in-progress

Work-in-progress is stated at the lower of cost and
net realisable value. Cost, which comprises all costs
of purchase and, where applicable, cost of
development including costs that have been incurred
for the provision of pharmaceutical application,
registration and testing services, is calculated using
the first-in, first out method. Net realisable value
represents the estimated selling price in the ordinary
course of business less the estimated costs of
completion and the estimated costs necessary to
make the sale.

Where the outcome of a pharmaceutical development
and clinical research contract or service can be
estimated reliably, revenue and costs are recognised
by reference to the stage of completion of the
contract activity at the balance sheet date, as
measured by the proportion that contract costs
incurred for work performed to date bear to the total
contract costs or the proportion that contract revenue
billed or recognised for work performed to date bear
to the total contract sums, whichever is the lower,
except where this would not be representative of the

stage of completion.
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3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(m) Work-in-progress (Continued)

(n)

(0)

Where the outcome of a contract or service cannot
be estimated reliably, contract revenue is recognised
to the extent of contract costs incurred that it is
probable that they will be recoverable. Contract costs
are recognised as expenses in the period in which
they are incurred.

When it is probable that the total contract costs will
exceed total contract revenue, the expected loss is
recognised as an expense immediately.

Trade and other receivables

Trade and other receivables are recognised initially
at fair value and thereafter stated at amortised cost
less provision for bad and doubtful debts and
impairment losses (note 5(b)), except where the
receivables are interest-free loans made to related
parties without any fixed repayment terms or the effect
of discounting would be immaterial. In such cases,
the receivables are stated at cost less impairment
losses for bad and doubtful debts.

Trade and other payables

Trade and other payables are initially recognised at
fair value and thereafter stated at amortised cost
unless the effect of discounting would be immaterial,
in which case they are stated at cost.
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3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3.
(Continued)

FTESFTHEBE &)

(p) Income tax (p) FRBH

Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax

currently payable and deferred tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit
for the year. Taxable profit is the profit for the year,
determined in accordance with the rules established
by the taxation authorities, upon which income taxes
are payable.

Deferred tax is the tax expected to be payable or
recoverable on differences between the carrying
amount of assets and liabilities in the financial
statements and the corresponding tax bases used in
the computation of taxable profit, and is accounted
for using the balance sheet liability method. Deferred
tax liabilities are generally recognised for all taxable
temporary differences and deferred tax assets are
recognised to the extent that it is probable that
taxable profits will be available against which
deductible temporary difference can be utilised. Such
assets and liabilities are not recognised if the
temporary difference arises from goodwill (or negative
goodwill) or from the initial recognition (other than a
business combination) of other assets and liabilities
in a transaction that affects neither the taxable profit
nor the accounting profit.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable
temporary differences arising on investment in
subsidiaries and associates, except where the Group
is able to control the reversal of the temporary
difference and it is probable that the temporary

difference will not reverse in the foreseeable future.
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3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(p)

(a)

Income tax (Continued)

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is
reviewed at each balance sheet date and reduced to
the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient
taxable profits will be available to allow all or part of
the asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax is calculated at the tax rates that are
expected to apply in the period when the liability is
settled or the asset realised. Deferred tax is charged
or credited in the income statement, except when it
relates to items charged or credited directly to equity,
in which case the deferred tax is also dealt with in

equity.

Operating leases

Leases where the lessor substantially retains all the
risks and rewards of ownership of assets are
accounted for as operating leases.

Rentals payable under operating leases, net of any
incentives received from the lessor, are charged to
the income statement on a straight line basis over
the terms of the relevant leases.

HE-ZTZAF+-_A=1+—HLFE

3.

FTESFTHEBE &)

(p)

st (&)

EERBEEZEAERNSEAGEBRRE
B - 3 70 A RE 5 48 2 59 R YR [B] 2 3P =k B8P
DEEZERBGNE T -

BEERBRRBREARABBREREE
SRMEZHRFHE - EXHBAR RS
KRR HET AR - BRIFELER AR
FERERANG R ER;F ARKZE
B &ZBRT  BERBIFRBAF
B o

FEAN

HHEARBEEMARZBARN AR

EE R HMOFNIERERD -

gEAORNES KRS REEAZ
EAER)ZARBANFHAEREE
W RN -



VENTUREPHARM LABORATORIES LIMITED Annual Report 2006

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
M % & R Mt

For the year ended 31 December 2006 HE-—ZTZE A F+_A=+—HIFE

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(r) Retirement benefits scheme

The Group participates in employee social security
plans of the PRC, including defined contribution
pension, medical, housing and other welfare benefits,
organised by the government authorities in
accordance with relevant regulations.

According to the relevant regulations, premium and
welfare benefit contributions are remitted to the social
welfare authorities on a monthly basis and are
calculated based on percentages of the total salary
of employees, subject to a certain ceiling.
Contributions to the plans are charged to the income
statement as incurred.
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3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

3. FESHEEBE (#)

(s) Share-based payments (s) ABMBLR

88

The Company operates a share option scheme for
the purpose of providing incentives and rewards to
eligible participants who contribute to the success of
the Group’s operations. Employees (including
directors) of the Group receive remuneration in the
form of share-based payment transactions, whereby
employees render services as consideration for equity
instruments (“equity-settled transactions”).

The cost of equity-settled transactions with employees
is measured by reference to the fair value at the date
at which they are granted.

The fair value of share options granted to employees
is recognised as an employee cost with a
corresponding increase in a capital reserve within
equity. The fair value is measured at grant date using
the Black-Scholes Model, taking into account the
terms and conditions upon which the options were
granted. Where the employees have to meet vesting
conditions before becoming unconditionally entitled
to the options, the total estimated fair value of the
options is spread over the vesting period, taking into
account the probability that the options will vest.

In valuing equity-settled transactions, no account is
taken of any performance conditions, other than
conditions linked to the price of the shares of the
Company (“market conditions”), if applicable.
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3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(s) Share-based payments (Continued)

During the vesting period, the number of share
options that is expected to vest is reviewed. Any
adjustment to the cumulative fair value recognised in
prior years is charged/credited to income statement
for the year of review, unless the original employee
expenses qualify for recognition as an asset, with a
corresponding adjustment to the capital reserve. On
vesting date, the amount recognised as an expense
is adjusted to reflect the actual number of options
that vest (with a corresponding adjustment to the
capital reserve) except where forfeiture is only due to
not achieving vesting conditions that relate to the
market price of the Company’s shares. The equity
amount is recognised in the capital reserve until either
the option is exercised (when it is transferred to the
share premium account) or the option expires (when
it is released directly to retained earnings).

3.
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3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(t)

(u)

Provision

Provisions for environmental restoration, restructuring
costs and legal claims are recognised when: the
Group has a present legal or constructive obligation
as a result of past events; it is probable that an
outflow of resources will be required to settle the
obligation; and the amount has been reliably
estimated. Restructuring provisions comprise lease
termination penalties and employee termination
payments. Provisions are not recognised for future
operating losses.

Where there are a number of similar obligations, the
likelihood that an outflow will be required in settlement
is determined by considering the class of obligations
as a whole. A provision is recognised even if the
likelihood of an outflow with respect to any one item
included in the same class of obligations may be
small.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents include cash at bank and
on hand, deposits at call with banks, other short-
term highly liquid investments with original maturities
of three months or less, which are repayable on
demand and form an integral part of the Company’s
cash management. Bank overdrafts are shown within

borrowings in current liabilities on the balance sheet.
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3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(v) Interest bearing borrowings

Interest bearing borrowings are recognised at fair
value initially when attributable transaction costs.
Subsequent to initial recognition, interest-bearing
borrowings are stated at amortised cost with any
difference between the amount initially recognised and
redemption value being recognised in the income
statement over the period of the borrowings using
the effective interest method.

(w) Government grants

Government grants are recognised in the balance
sheet initially when there is reasonable assurance that
they will be received and that the Group will comply
with the conditions attaching to them. Grants that
compensate the Group for expenses incurred are
recognised in income statement on a systemic basis
in the same periods in which the expenses are
incurred. Grants that compensate the Group for the
cost of an asset are deducted in arriving at the
carrying amount of the asset and consequently are
recognised in profit or loss over the useful life of the

asset.
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3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3. FEBHHEME (&)
(Continued)
(x) Financial guarantees (x) B TR

92

Financial guarantees are contracts that require the
issuer to make specified payments to reimburse the
beneficiary of the guarantee for a loss the holder
incurs because a specified debtor fails to make
payment when due in accordance with the terms of
a debt instrument. Where the company issues a
financial guarantee, the fair value of the guarantee
(being the transaction price, unless the fair value can
otherwise be reliably estimated) is initially recognised
as deferred income within trade and other payables.
Where consideration is received or receivable for the
issuance of the guarantee, the consideration is
recognised in accordance with the company’s policies
applicable to that category of asset. Where no such
consideration is received or receivable, an immediate
expense is recognised in profit or loss on initial
recognition of any deferred income.

The amount of the guarantee initially recognised as
deferred income is amortised over the terms of the
guarantee as income from financial guarantees issued.
In addition, provisions are recognised if and when (i)
it becomes probable that the holder of the guarantee
will call upon the company under the guarantee, and
(i) the amount of that claim on the company is
expected to exceed the amount currently carried in
trade and other payables in respect of that guarantee,
i.e. the amount initially recognised, less accumulated

amortisation.
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4. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

4.1 Financial risk factors

The Group’s activities expose it to a variety of financial
risks: market risk (including currency risk, fair value
interest risk and price risk), credit risk, liquidity risk
and cash flow interest-rate risk. The Group’s overall
risk management programme focuses on the
unpredictability of financial markets and seeks to
minimise potential adverse effects on the Group’s
financial performance on a timely and effective
manner. The Group uses derivative financial
instruments to hedge certain risk exposures.

(a) Market risk — Price risk

The Group is exposed to equity securities price
risk because investments held by the Group are
classified on the consolidated balance sheet as
available-for-sale financial assets. The Group is
not exposed to commodity price risk.

(b) Credit risk

The Group’s credit risks are primarily attributable
to trade receivables and other receivables.
Management has a credit policy in place and the
exposures to these credit risks are monitored on
an ongoing basis.
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4. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

4.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)

(c)

(@)

Liquidity risk

Prudent liquidity risk management implies
maintaining sufficient cash and marketable
securities, the availability of funding through an
adequate amount of committed credit facilities
and the ability to close out market positions. Due
to the dynamic nature of the underlying
businesses, the Group treasury aims to maintain
flexibility in funding by keeping committed credit
lines available.

Cash flow and fair value interest rate risk

As the Group has no significant interest-bearing
assets except for certain cash and cash
equivalents and financial instruments assets, the
Group’s income and operating cash flows are
substantially independent of changes in market
interest rates.
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4. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

4.2 Fair value estimation

The fair value of financial instruments traded in active
markets (such as publicly traded derivatives, and
trading and available-for-sale securities) is based on
quoted market prices at the balance sheet date. The
quoted market price used for financial assets held by
the Group is the current bid price; the appropriate
quoted market price for financial liabilities is the
current ask price.

The fair value of financial instruments that are not
traded in an active market (for example, over-the
counter derivatives) is determined by using
appropriate valuation techniques. The Group uses a
variety of methods and makes assumptions that are
based on market conditions existing at each balance
sheet date. Quoted market prices or dealer quotes
for similar instruments are used for fair value
estimation. Other techniques, such as estimated
discounted cash flows, are used to determine fair

value for the remaining financial instruments.

The nominal value less estimated credit adjustments
of trade receivables and payables are assumed to
approximate their fair values. The fair value of financial
liabilities for disclosure purposes is estimated by
discounting the future contractual cash flows at the
current market interest rate that is available to the

Group for similar financial instruments.
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5.

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
ASSUMPTIONS

Estimates and judgements are continually evaluated and
are based on historical experience and other factors,
including expectations of future events that are believed
to be reasonable under the circumstances.

Critical accounting estimates, assumptions and judgements

In preparing the consolidated financial statements,
accounting estimates and judgements need to be made.
The Group evaluates these based on historical experience
and other factors, including expectations of future events
that are believed to be reasonable under the
circumstances.

The Group makes estimates and assumptions concerning
the future. The resulting accounting estimates will, by
definition, seldom equate the related actual results.
Estimates and assumptions that may have a significant
risk of causing material adjustments to the carrying
amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial

year are discussed below.
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5. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
ASSUMPTIONS (Continued)

Critical accounting estimates, assumptions and judgements
(Continued)

(a)

(b)

Impairment of intangible assets

The Group performs annual tests on whether there
has been impairment of intangible assets in
accordance with the accounting policy stated in note
3(j). The recoverable amounts of cash-generating units
are determined based on value-in-use calculations.
These calculations require the use of estimates and
assumptions made by management on the future
operation of the business, pre-tax discount rates, and
other assumptions underlying the value-in-use

calculations.

Trade debtors

The aged debt profile of trade debtors is reviewed
on a regular basis to ensure that the trade debtor
balances are collectible and follow up actions are
promptly carried out if the agreed credit periods have
been exceeded for a specified period. However, from
time to time, the Group may experience delays in
collection. Where recoverability of trade debtor
balances are called into doubts, specific provisions
for bad and doubtful debts are made based on credit
status of the customers, the aged analysis of the
trade receivable balances and write-off history. Certain
receivables may be initially identified as collectible,
yet subsequently become uncollectible and result in
a subsequent write-off of the related receivable to
the income statement. Changes in the collectibility of
trade receivables for which provisions are not made
could affect our results of operations.
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5. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
ASSUMPTIONS (Continued)

Critical accounting estimates, assumptions and judgements
(Continued)

(c)

(@)

Useful lives of fixed assets

In accordance with HKAS 16, the Group estimates
the useful lives of fixed assets in order to determine
the amount of depreciation expenses to be recorded.
The useful lives are estimated at the time the asset is
acquired based on historical experience, the expected
usage, wear and tear of the assets, as well as
technical obsolescence arising from changes in the
market demands or service output of the assets. The
Group also performs annual reviews on whether the

assumptions made on useful lives continue to be valid.

Impairment of work-in-progress

Provision for slowing-moving work-in-progress is
made based on the ageing and accomplishment of
certain milestone stage such as clinical studies permit
during the process of development. The assessment
of the provision amount required involving
management judgement and estimates. Where the
actual outcome or expectation in future is different
from the original estimate, such differences will impact
the carrying value of work-in-progress and provision
charge/write-back in the period in which such

estimate has been changed.

5.

ERSHATTREBR @)

BEEEHAE  BREHE (B

(c)

(@)

[E] 7€ & E 5B A F IR

AEERERESAEAFZI6HRART
EEtEEEER R FFE - femH & pr
AVIBRMFTESH - AEERBARE
ZE - REBEAEER - BENABER
B BREE UERMEeEREMSFE
KA BEERBEMERBE - At K
ARFR AEEYEREBFIELR
A B R E E R A FREH KRR
EEMREE -

7 & p 6 16

I EHGRERBEEAEPHAIZCETE
R P& B (Pl a0 PR 7T 7T ) 2 A 2 Be SR
e BEEEFRBESERFTRELA
B K (AT o WERERIARKMERR
BfETAR BRAZRETEMT AR
SYHM o ENREAERBEESI L
eI
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5. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
ASSUMPTIONS (Continued)

Critical accounting estimates, assumptions and judgements
(Continued)

(e) Impairment of non-current assets

If a triggering event occurs indicating that the carrying
amount of an asset may not be recoverable, an
assessment of the carrying amount of that asset will
be performed. Triggering events include significant
adverse changes in the market value of an asset,
changes in the business or regulatory environment,
or certain legal events. The interpretation of such
events requires judgment from management with
respect to whether such an event has occurred. Upon
the occurrence of triggering events, the carrying
amounts of non-current assets are reviewed to assess
whether their recoverable amounts have declined
below their carrying amounts. The recoverable amount
is the present value of estimated net future cash flows
which the Group expects to generate from the future
use of the asset, plus the assets residual value on
disposal. Where the recoverable amount of non-
current assets is less than its carrying value, an
impairment loss is recognised to write the assets

down to its recoverable amount.

5.

ERSHATTREBR @)

BEEEHAE  BREHE (B

() FEFBEENR1E

WMELBESM  BREENKREER
EEEAME - AEREKFEZEENK
HE - WEFHEEEEMERK 2
BARERFEEE HETERSES -
EEERBLESEMA  AHEARS
HREEDOREE - NBEABESRM K
SEBHEERDEENREE - UF
HEANDNEEEAEKERANEKRE
B AAREEEASAEEERBRER
ZEEGLAUESHNRRRASREFHE
MRE MEHERZEENFRE
18 - AIERBE E N AR E & RN E
IREE  AREKEDREBSE K&
EEMREREREATEEEE -
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6. TURNOVER AND SEGMENT INFORMATION

2006 2005
—RBXE -TTIF
RMB’000 RMB'000

AR TR ARETT

Transfer of technology for new drugs and B2 o2 3 R i K

new drugs development e E 5,853 11,666
Contracted pharmaceutical development EAAEERTERE

services and clinical research services EEIROE 27

associated with technology A 2 AR 1% &

transferred by the Group B& PR Ot 7% AR 75 23,445 13,434
Contracted pharmaceutical development BN &5 B £ iy 8 5

services and clinical research services not | ZERTRNEYD

associated with technology A 2 AR 1% &

transferred by the Group B& PR Ot 7% AR 75 26,007 14,035
Import registration services ¥ O 3 AR 7% - 351
Royalty income BFEFRE LA 1,022 1,322
Sales of active pharmaceutical S 1 B K LA

ingredients products X 5 EE & 725 1,349

57,052 42,157

Turnover and contribution to profit from operations by
segment has not been presented as over 90% of the
Group’s turnover was derived from the pharmaceutical
research and development, registration, application and
testing in the PRC and all assets were located in the
PRC for both years.

HRASEBEBI0% EXBEHREERNT
BlA) S BLAT 2~ oEf - REARBIE - A
PIBEEENILEMEFEFINFE - B R
2HEXBEREKLLEN ZERZOBSD
#r
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N

9. PROFIT BEFORE TAXATION

=

=

/

N

F+=-—A=+—8

Profit before taxation is stated after charging/(crediting)

the following items:

9. BRBiATEF

BB A8 AU DR (FEA) T3IE B &5

BE

2006 2005

ZEBEBAEF —ETTRF

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®B T ARET T

Depreciation e 529 367

Employee benefit expenses (note 10) EERAZE (HFE10) 6,873 10,590
Amortisation of new drugs technology STAITHAS Z

including in administrative expenses T S5 B 1l B 5 795 348

Auditors’ remuneration 1% SR B & 361 361
Minimum lease payments B EAOE N

paid under operating lease =EEE 1,756 1,785

Provision for trade receivables JEWE 5 IR SR 4,798 4,594

Provision for work-in-progress & m e 1,163 1,386

10. EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSES 10.EEE/A X H

2006 2005

—EEXRE —ETHEF

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR¥ET AR T T

Wages and salaries TEEFH & 6,502 9,196

Retirement benefits B R E T

scheme contributions FT 8t 5K 576 1,136

Share-based payment & 15 1+ 7% - 258

Lapse of share-based options A % 1 2K RK (205) -

6,873 10,590
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10. EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSES (Continued)
(b) Five highest paid individual
The five highest paid individuals included two (2005:

two) directors of the Company. The emoluments of
the remaining three (2005: three) individuals were as

10.BEERA X H (&)

(b) EEBREHFMA L

AameFMALTEERE (2T
FORMB)ARAES - HBH =% (=F
TRE: ZF)Z2HMEWT -

follows:
The Group
REE
2006 2005
—®¥XE  -TEAF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR T AR T T
Salaries and allowances e kER 362 787
Retirement benefits scheme RIKAE A
contributions FT &t K 23 35
385 822

The emoluments of each of the five highest paid
employees are less than HKD 1,000,000 (equivalent
to approximately RMB1,030,000 for both years).

During the year, no emoluments were paid by the
Group to any directors of the Company or the five
highest paid individuals as an inducement to join or
upon joining the Group or as compensation for loss
of office. None of the directors has waived any
emoluments in the year.

hEZsadMEE ZHEH L RBE
1,000,000 (MEFEE S BHEFERLA
R #1,030,0007T) °

FR AEERBARNAREERTHA
RRFMALHEMME - ESINA
HEMARE B 2 RE) - SK(ERBER
BR{E - T E = IR BE R R SR AT () B
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11.INCOME TAX

1. FrEH

2006 2005
—EERE —ETRHF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR T AR T IT
The charge represents: THIA H g
PRC enterprise income tax RS 3,175 887

No Hong Kong Profits Tax has been provided for, as the
Group had no taxable profits in Hong Kong for both years.
The Company’s subsidiaries are subject to PRC income
tax on their assessable profits.

PRC enterprise income tax is computed according to the
relevant laws and regulations in the PRC.

Beijing Dezhong-Venture Pharmaceutical Technology
Development Co., Ltd. (“Dezhong VP”) and Beijing
Venture-Biopharm Services Co., Ltd. (“V Biopharm”),
subsidiaries of the Company, qualify as foreign investment
industrial and high technology enterprises and are subject
to PRC enterprise income tax at a rate of 15 per cent on
its income after offsetting prior year’s losses.

No provision for deferred tax has been made as there
are no material temporary differences at the balance sheet
date.

HRARERMEFEANLBEETEELE
Al ERR B A - B LB B S B
o NRAF 2B R A EERTUE B
MR BB

FECEMAEHDRETEEREE LA
ARAMBARILRERE 2B R %
BER2A([ERER]) - tREBE2BALEE
MEERAR([B82Hk]) RtRERER
BEMBRARARNAINEREIELEER
BHREEZER - Bt - ZFERFZHA
REHEBEFEZERR - ARMN15%2F
BEXMER -

HRGEERYEEAEREER - MALKH
EIER IR MR B -
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12.PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

12.9% BERRXE

Furniture,
fixtures and
Leasehold equipment Motor
improvement Machinery A vehicles Total
HELR HELER EERRE RE ait
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETT ARETT ANEETFT ARETT ARETR
The Group 8-
Cost KA
At 1 January 2005 RZZTRF-A-H 1,008 5,969 1,824 1,268 10,069
Additions R 698 682 408 - 1,788
Disposal e - ?) (4) - (6)
Reclassffication BB 72 (812) 734 6 -
At 31 December 2005 RZBEEREFZA=1—H 1,778 5,837 2,962 1,274 11,851
Addition R 668 1,365 235 - 2,268
Disposal e - - (826) (200) (1,026)
At 31 December 2006 RZBBRE+-A=+-A 2,446 1,202 2,371 1,074 13,003
Accumulated depreciation ZHHE
At 1 January 2005 RZZERE-F-H 611 2,256 615 331 3,813
Charge for the year AEEXH 223 714 438 106 1,481
Eliminated on disposal R E B3 - (1) (3) - (4)
Reclassification BN0H (184) (269) 453 - -
At 31 December 2005 RZEZRETZA=T-H 650 2,700 1,508 437 5,290
Charge for the year TEEXH 855 844 268 100 2,067
Eliminated on disposal T & B A - - (826) (200) (1,026)
At 31 December 2006 RZEERE+-A=1-H 1,505 3,544 945 397 6,331
Net carrying amount REFE
At 31 December 2006 R-EExE+-A=1-R 94 3,658 1,426 731 6,762
At 31 December 2005 RZEZRETZA=T-H 1,128 3,187 1,459 837 6,561
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12. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (Continued) 12.9% - MERSKE &)
Furniture,
Fixtures and
The Company equipment
PN FRE - £B
k&
RMB’000
ARET T
Cost R A
At 31 December 2005 R_ZEZERAFE+_-_A=+—H
and 31 December 2006 R_ZTRF+_HA=+—H 75
Accumulated depreciation 2t E
At 1 January 2005 RZZETHE—H—H 24
Charge for the year REE T 15
At 31 December 2005 R_ZEZERAFE+_-_A=+—H 39
Charge for the year AEREZH 15
At 31 December 2006 RZZEERF+_A=+—H 54
Net carrying amount iR R B
At 31 December 2006 RZZEERF+_A=+—H 21
At 31 December 2005 RZZEZRF+_A=+—H 36
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13. NEW DRUGS TECHNOLOGY 13. F B R il
The Group REHE
RMB’000
ARET T
Cost or valuation R AN =R G B
At 1 January 2005 R_ZEZEHRF—HF—H 2,625
Additions R 137
Transfer from work-in-progress during the year RAFEEREER M 301
At 31 December 2005 R_ZEZERAFE+_-_A=+—H 3,063
Additions R 40
Transfer from work-in-progress during the year RAFEEEA TR R 6,262
At 31 December 2006 R-EEXF+-HA=+—H 9,365
Amortisation and impairment B RE
At 1 January 2005 R_ZEZERE—A—H 115
Amortisation charge for the year NEZHET N 348
At 31 December 2005 R-_ZEZERAFE+_H=+—H 463
Amortisation charge for the year NEZHET N 795
At 31 December 2006 R-EEXF+=-HA=+—H 1,258
Net carrying amount R B
At 31 December 2006 R-EEXF+-H=+—H 8,107
At 31 December 2005 R_ZEZERAFE+_-_A=+—H 2,600
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13. NEW DRUGS TECHNOLOGY (Continued)

For the year ended 31 December 2006

13. &R ()

The intangible assets included above have finite useful
lives, over which the assets are amortised. The
amortisation period for development costs incurred on
the Group’s new drugs technology is five years. The
directors considered that there were no impairment for
the year ended 31 December 2006. Details of critical
accounting estimates were set out in Note 5(a).

FRAAFIZEVEEAGRERFH TR
LB A - RSB ERMATS &
BRAZEBHEBRARTE  EFRANEE
TEERFT A= T B ILEFELEEM
WE - FRAEZG et 2 FBH N W
5(a) °

14. INTEREST IN SUBSIDIARIES 14 RMB AR 2SR
2006 2005
—ERAF —TTHF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR T AR T T
Unlisted shares, at cost LM - KA 30,374 30,374
Amounts due from subsidiaries NGRS 21,746 17,352
Amounts due to subsidiaries FEAST BT /B A Bl 3k IA (2,674) (2,656)
49,446 45,070

The cost of the unlisted shares is based on the book
value of the underlying net assets of the subsidiaries
attributable to the Group on the date of the Group
Reorganisation.

The amounts due from/(to) subsidiaries are unsecured,
interest-free and have no fixed repayment terms. The
amounts will not be repayable within twelve months from
the balance sheet date. Accordingly, the amounts are
shown as non-current.

FLTRDZARADRASEREEEHRA
HEMEARABEEFEREENS -

FEd, (R B A RIRIAREER - 28
FEBTEREGK - BRNBEBARGHE A
B EAREE - Bit - BRI
mMEBBREZY -
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14. INTEREST IN SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

For the year ended 31 December 2006

14ARMEBRE 2R (&)

AATR-EEAE+-A=+—RA2IS
WEATNEDT

Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries as at
31 December 2006 are as follows:

Company name
NCEE

Place of
incorporation/
establishment/
operations
HRAL/ HY/
B

Registered
capital issued
and fully paid

share capital
BRTEMER
RERKRA

Attributabl
equity

e

interest held

gl

e £
Directly

E#

Indirectly
B

Principal
activities
FTEER

Beijing Dezhong VP
Technology

Development Co Ltd!"

ERERELED
RTAEERAA

Hainan Sinican
Bio-labs Limited®

Hanzhong
Venturepharm
Pharm-Chemical
Company Limited®

EREREENT
BRAT

Beijing, the PRC
HER

Hainan, the PRC
alEiisEe

Hanzhong, the PRC
HEER

RMB7,154,420
ART7,154,4207C

US$360,000
360,000% 7T

US$600,000
600,000 7T

94.512%

100%

51%

The research and development
of new drug preparation, raw
materials, supplementary
materials (excipients and
additives) and biodrugs;
technological transfer
and services

RERAENERE - Rk
BERME (REERAME)
RENER : RNERRRY

The research, development
and production of drugs,
natural drugs and synthetic
drugs; technological transfer
of and services for the
research and development
of biodrugs, natural drugs
and synthetic drugs;
pharmacodynamic and
clinical research of drugs

HE REREEZM -
AREmREREm R
REEENER AN Em
AR Em B8 ERR
Bm BAHERERTAE

Sales and manufacturing
of active pharmaceutical
ingredients products

HERRERMBHRNEm
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14. INTEREST IN SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

For the year ended 31 December 2006

14ARMEBRE 2R (&)

ARAR-ZBERF+_A=1t—RZEE
MBABFBWOT - (&)

Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries as at
31st December 2006 are as follows: (Continued)

112

Place of Registered
incorporation/ capital issued Attributahle
establishment/ and fully paid equity
operations share capital interest held Principal
Company name gAY/ B/ BRTEMER s activities
REAER mEhy REZRE e £ TERH
Directly Indirectly
E# B

P.K. Pharmatech Mumbai, India INR100,000 - 50% Inactive

Private Limited® HERE 100,000E0 % B 1 (note (a)) TERREH
GELR)

Beijing Venture- Beijing, the PRC RMB1,6565,747 = 100% The research development
Sunshine LTS ARHA1,655,7477C and production of drugs,
Pharmaceutical natural drugs and synthetic
Technology Co., Ltd drugs; technological transfer
(V Biopharm”)® of and services for the

tRE2ENBERK research and development of
BERRAR((B2EX]) biodrugs, natural drugs and

synthetic drugs;
pharmacodynamic and clinical
research of drugs

0% BEREEER
AREmREREm R
RAZENED XA Em
Al Em RiTEERRS ;
BmBAHERERAE

Venturepharm British Virgin Islands US$100 100% = Investment holding
Laboratories (BVI) (“BVI") 100% 7 REER
Limited (“VP (BVI)")¢ EEELEE ([BV))

Venturepharm Hong Kong, the PRC HK$10,000 = 100% Inactive
Life Science Capital TEEB 10,000% 70 TERREH
Limited®

Ex4abiRE
ARAF
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14. INTEREST IN SUBSIDIARIES (Continued) 14 RMBARZER (&)
Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries as at RABRZEZERF+A=FT—H2ZEZE
31st December 2006 are as follows: (Continued) MEBARFBET : (&)
Place of Registered
incorporation/ capital issued Attributable
establishment/ and fully paid equity
operations share capital interest held Principal
Company name HMRYL/ KL/ BRTHEMER Fris e activities
AGEE RewH REZRE R g5 TERH
Directly Indirectly
E# B#
Venovo Pharma British Virgin Islands US$1 100% = Investment holding
US Inc. (‘BVI)
ZBELHS ([BVI) E REAR
IRERE2RERE Beijing, the PRC US$200,000 - 100% The research, development
BRARN Tl 200,000% and production of new drugs,

natural drugs, and synthetic
drugs; technological transfer
of and services for research
and development of
biodrugs, natural drugs and
synthetic drugs,
pharmacodynamic and
clinical research of drugs
HE REREEZM -
AREmRAKED  HE
REZEENEm  RAZmR
AR Em B8 ERRE
B ENHRRERERAE
Remark: &t

(1) Statutory financial statements being audited by Probity Certified (1) FAEVBHRERLEREERGSHAEBAER °
Public Accountants (3t = 2 B X )8 € 51 A E 75 F7).

(2) Statutory financial statements being audited by /& & X 5= B € 5 (2 AEVMBHRRLEBEXKEERSAEBAER -
T

(3) Statutory financial statements being audited by Shaanxi Qinyue (B) AEVMBHRERLRAZNERETSMEBLME
Certified Public Accountants Inc. (BEFE 2= #) A [R & (£ & 5t bl = %5 Fr). % o
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15. INTEREST IN ASSOCIATES

RZZTER

NEFE+-A=+—H”

15.ABE QR 2 s

The Group
rEH
2006 2005
ZEBEBAEF —ETTRF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥ T ARBT T
As at 1 January Wn—H—H 4,047 2,235
Additions in investment cost & KA G R - 2,000
Disposal of investment HERE (759) =
Share of associates’ results JEGHE & AR A
— loss before taxation — B A E 1A (53) (188)
— taxation — 18 - -
As at 31 December R+=—A=+—8H 3,235 4,047
Details of the Group’s associate at 31 December 20086, RZZBEERF+_A=1+—H AL 2AHE
which is held indirectly by the Company, are as follows: BESZAEER S ARFEBHET
Profit/ Interest
(loss) held
Name of associate Place of incorporation Assets Liabilities Revenue -y s
BENTEB o A O 1t B BE =L Il 2% (B5#) i
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT AR%®Tr AR®TrT AR®TR
Zhejiang Dankong Zhejiang, the PRC 4,966 - - - 45%
Venturepharm Co. Ltd BT
NovaDerm Inc British Virgin Islands (“BVI”) 2,000 2,000 = - 40%

RBRUES

During the year, the Company disposed all interest in the
associate of BEBBI RAEYA R BR A Flat a
consideration of RMB1,000,000 to a third party by signing
a disposal agreement with the other shareholder in
December 2006. The sales proceeds was subsequently
received after year end.

FR - ARBAEBES - BRR_FTREF
RN EERE  RME=AHENBE QTG
MBRMRAEYHAERBRATNMEE
@ RBERAKY1,000,0007T ° £ & 1T
RIBBER N F 45 B R UER -
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R-TEAF+-A=+—8

16. AVAILABLE-FOR-SALES FINANCIAL ASSETS

16. A HHESREE

The Group The Company
rEE KA 7]
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T AR T T
As at 31 December 2005 R_ZEZRFEF+_-_A=+—H 28,275 28,275
Reversal of available-for-sales AHEEE SR
financial assets reserve BEEMEREE (7,200) (7,200)
Opening adjustment on fair value NemEEATE
in financial assets EH 2 BRI A& (1,377) (1,377)
Restated balance as at RZEZRE+=_A=+—H
31 December 2005 RE 2 &8 19,698 19,698
Exchange realignment bE 5, 38 & (795) (795)
Change in fair value
in financial assets for the year FRNERMEERATEE 345 345
As at 31 December 2006 R-ZZBEARFEF+=-A=+—H 19,248 19,248
Available-for-sales financial CIRESER=S
assets include: TREEBRSE
- Two investment bonds — MEH & &5
(see below detailed terms) (R T XEFEAER) 19,248 19,248

The available-for-sales financial assets of RMB19,248,000
had been pledged to secure bank overdraft granted to

the Group.

Details of the investment bonds included the followings:

REBHFHBEE

AEBERBTFAEREZRITE IEF A H#
HE SR EE ARE19,248,0007T °

Terms/

Bond issuer Maturity period Interest rate Cost
BEHTA F4,/38A il = B2
LLOYDS TSB Bank

15 years US$ callable dual range accrual note 2005-2020 8.6% coupon rate US$700,000
LLOYDS TSB BANK —EEREZE S B Xg6E 700,000% 7T

15FEMETAENEEREARE —T_FTF
DEUTSCHE BANK AG LONDON BRANCH

15 years US$ callable non-inversion 2005-2020 8.3% coupon rate US$1,900,000
DEUTSCHE BANK AG LONDON BRANCH —EEREZE Z B X8 3E 1,900,000% 7T

16FEMETABEOEEXES —T_FTF
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17. UNLISTED INVESTMENT 173k LETmHRE
As at 31 December 2006, the investment in securities R-ZEEZRE+-_A=+—"H BHFEREB
comprised of the followings: &

The Group
rEH
2006 2005
— —TTRF
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®B TR ARETT

Investment in unlisted securities

outside Hong Kong BABEINCIELETIRE 9,396 9,396
As at 31 December 2006, the Group has an investment RZEZERNFEF+ZA=1+—H0 ' x&EHEE
in unlisted securities outside Hong Kong. RBEBRINELMES °
According to HKAS 32 and 39, unlisted investment BIEE B ST ERA 3257 X395k  BHFER
outside Hong Kong is considered by directors as INELETIRERESRIEAIHIEESRMEE
available-for-sale financial assets as follows: U N

2006 2005
ZEBEBAEF —EThHF
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR® TR ARETT

As at 31st December R+=—A=+—H 9,396 9,396
Listed/Unlisted investment EmELETWERE
— investment in unlisted investment —RBEBRINE
outside Hong Kong EmigEZKRE 6,080 6,080
— Amount due from —EWELETRE 2
unlisted investment IR 3,316 3,316
9,396 9,396
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For the year ended 31 December 2006

17. UNLISTED INVESTMENT (Continued)

R-EEAE+-—A=+—0

The amounts due from the unlisted investments are

unsecured, interest-free and have no fixed repayment

terms. The amounts will not be repayable within twelve

17k EHRE (&)

FEUIE E IR EREAEEM - 28 RER
EEEGK - EEFABANEEREF T+
“EAREE  Fit - BEARFIAFERDE

months from the balance sheet date. Accordingly, the BE75 -
amounts are shown as non-current.
Percentage
of equity
Particulars of attributable
Name of Place of issued and paid-up to the Principal
Company incorporation registered capital Company activities
BETR RN REL
NEER =F i B 3 it 26 BEEMBARFES EmE DL FTEEK
Hainan Pioneer Hainan, PRC RMB32,000,000 19% Sales and manufacturing

REEEE

Pharmaceutical Co. Ltd.

A K #32,000,0007T

of Active Pharmaceutical
Ingredients products
HEREEBNER K,

E m
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18. WORK-IN-PROGRESS 18. 8 M
The Group
rEH

2006 2005
—EEREF —ETTRF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®B T AR T T

Work-in-progress FRG-BF4
— contracted (note (a)) (FF7E () 18,039 13,393

Work-in-progress R — RETA
— not-contracted (note (b)) (Bt 7% (b)) 35,316 29,611
Allowance for work-in-progress 1 8 B 1 (6,421) (5,258)
46,934 37,746

(@) The balance represents the project costs incurred
for the contracted research and development,
pharmaceutical application, registration and testing
services, but have not met the extent of the milestone
payments earned in accordance with the applicable

performance requirements and contractual terms.

(b) The balance comprises of development costs incurred
with the intention of outright sales as technology
transfer but have not been contracted.

(c) At 31 December 2006, the carrying amount of work-
in-progress that were carried at net realisable value
amounted to RMB1,325,000 (2005: RMB2,978,000).

Details of assessment for impairment are set out in note
5(d).

(c)

AERECRIN MR RFEE - REH
o it RO ARBEEZHBE KA
HERRERZIRE 2 EEREBER
fif K T 2K BE Ui HR 48 FE A /2 R 0R -

SREREREARMBERELE ZH
ERA - BEARRIZAH °

RZBEZRFEF+TA=+—H A&
RFEIE2THREEEAARK
1,325,000 (ZZEZ A F : AR
2,978,0007TC) °

BB FF Al B B AR RES (D)
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19. TRADE RECEIVABLES

19.ENE Z IR

The fair value of trade receivables are as follows:

RWESERZ ATFENT :

The Group
rEE
2006 2005
ZEEXREF —EThE
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥ET T ARETTT
Trade receivables — net FEUE 5 BR 55 58 18,023 9,483

The Group allows an average credit period of 90 days to
its trade customers. The aged analysis of trade receivables
of the Group at the balance sheet date is as follows:

AEEEH

HESEFPZFHEERR

THZR
90R  REEBAKERKE 5 RX Rk

DT

The Group
rEE

2006 2005
—EEXRE —EThRE
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥ T ARBT T
Within 90 days 90H A 7,529 6,714
91 — 180 days 91H 2=180H 8,752 1,546
181 — 365 days 181H £ 365H 1,393 1,223
Over 365 days B 3#@365H 349 =
18,023 9,483

The carrying amounts of trade receivables approximate

their fair values.

RKEZERZEEEREAFERS
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20. PREPAYMENTS, DEPOSITS AND OTHER
RECEIVABLES

20 ANRIE - RERHEMBWRKE

The prepayments, deposits and other receivables are as FENHRIE  ZeREMEKRKBNT :

follows:
The Group
rEH
2006 2005
ZEBBAEF —ETTRF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARE T ARBT T
Prepayments T B 415 3,925
Deposits by geea 6,360 3,082
Other receivables H b JlE L 5K I8 11,048 12,430
17,823 19,437

BNR - e REAMRYEIR 2 REER
HRAFERESE -

The carrying amounts of prepayments, deposits and other
receivables approximate their fair values.

21. AMOUNTS DUE FROM RELATED COMPANIES 21. BB E A A RIE

Details of the amounts due from related companies are FEWREE AT B Z B WM T

as follows:

The Group The Company
rEHE AT
2006 2005 2006 2005
TEEXRE —_ZTTHFE ZEBERE ZZITTHF
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTR AR®TT AR®TR ARETT
Name of companies NG
Sanmenxia Sinoway =P IR E A
Pharmaceutical Co., Ltd IEFR A A
(“Sinoway Pharmaceutical) (EmuEris]) 760 1,496 - =
Venturepharm Inc. Venturepharm Inc.
(“VP Inc”) (TVP Inc.]) 536 263 25 25
1,296 1,759 25 25
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21. AMOUNTS DUE FROM RELATED COMPANIES

(Continued)

Both companies are the subsidiaries of the Company’s
substantial shareholders.

The amounts are unsecured, interest-free and repayable
on demand.

The maximum balance due from Sinoway Pharmaceutical
and VP Inc. for the year ended 31 December 2006 was
RMB1,496,000 and RMB536,000 respectively.

Sinoway Pharmaceutical is a domestic owned enterprise
established in the PRC. In accordance with Chapter 20
of the Listing Rules of GEM, the Company was required
to disclose its continuing financial assistance which the
percentage ratio is less than 2.5% or the percentage
ratio is equal to or more than 2.5% but less than 25%
and the total consideration is less than HKD10,000,000,
but no such disclosure was made by the Company. Such
non-disclosure may constitute to a breach of the Listing
Rules of GEM.

21

JEWBE N T RIE (&)

MERBERAAREEREZHMBLT -

BREFBAREER 28 BARERERE -

BABRERVP IncRNEBE ST AF+ =
A=+—BUHEEFEZEEERFED B ABA
R #1,496,0007T & A R #536,0007T °

BhupasNhERK I 2 NERERE -
BIEAIER ETEAFE20E - ARARERE
EBEDHER2.5%E DL ER2.5%3 =
R 25%E K R 25k &K & 4R
10,000,000 L 2 FHE VB ER) - BARRQ A
WEELBREIER - ZAREFELEREZ1TA
AEBERERAZER EMBRZTE -
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22.TRADE PAYABLES

2.ENFEZRM

The Group rEE
2006 2005
—EERE —ETHEF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR T ARET T
Trade payables FEE 5 RN 463 594

The Group receives an average credit period of 90

days from its trade suppliers. The aged analysis of

trade payables of the Group at the balance sheet

date is as follows:

BEHHERRAETASEZ YO EERR
908 @ REHBAKBEMNE 5 RN 2Rk

DT ¢

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR TR AR T T

Within 90 days 90H A 52 272
91 — 180 days 91H =180H - 4
181 — 365 days 181 H £ 365H 282 318
Over 365 days B 3E365H 129 =
463 594

The carrying amounts of trade payables approximate their

fair values.

BNEZEREEEREAFERS -
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23. ACCRUALS AND OTHER PAYABLES

For the year ended 31 December 2006

23 B REREtENKIE

The Group The Company
rEHE A F
2006 2005 2006 2005
ZBBRARE _—_ZTTLhF ZBEBERE _—TETILF
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTRT AR®TT AR¥TR ARETT
Accruals JE & A 440 401 440 401
Other payables H {th J& {5 ;I8 645 4,477 - —
1,085 4,878 440 401
24. INTEREST-BEARING BORROWINGS 245t BB &
The Group The Company
rEHE PN
2006 2005 2006 2005
ZEBERE —ZETHhE ZBBXRE —ZELF
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTR AR®TT AR®TR ARETT
Bank borrowings RITEE
- secured (note 30) — B (KI5E30) 6,451 3,000 6,451 3,000
— unsecured — AR A - = - -
6,451 3,000 6,451 3,000

The bank borrowings are settled within one year and

classified as current liabilities. The carrying amount of

the Group’s and the Company’s borrowings approximate

to their fair value.

RITEEAR—FREE  YRRBEED
B ARERARRBEZREERLRAF

BERE -
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26. RESERVES 26.1# 18
The Group rEE
Available-
for-sales
financial Statutory
Share-based Held to assets enterprise
payment  maturity Teserve expansion Minority
reserve reserue it Special Gapital ~ Statutory fund  Refained interests
R BZE  BESR  resene  reseve  resee  ERLE  eamings D Total
fiRGE HHEE LERG KUEE E5RF ERERE BREE RERY BRRER At
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000
ARBTR ARETR ARETT ARETT ARETT ARETR ARETR ARETT ARETR ARETR
At 1 January 2005 RZEERE-A-H = 5,500 = 6,039 903 3,334 6,617 43,992 3,190 69,475
Effect of adopting new Famedng
accounting policy L2
- HKAS 39 —BA RN 0% - 720 - - - - - - - 720
- HKFRS 2 - BRMBREENF A 258 - - - - - - - - 258
Reversal of avallable-for-sales ~ HIEA &
financial assets upon disposal £ REEEEME - (5500 - - - - - - - (5500
Transfer to reserves ERTEME - - - - 9) 278 278 (679) 8 (134)
Profit for the year REEET - - - - - - - 5,644 (128) 5516
At 31 December 2005 R-FTRET_A=1-H 258 7,200 - 6,039 894 3,612 6,795 48963 3,054 76,815
Opening adjustment of BAERAE0% 2
HKAS 39 note 16) E8% - (7,200 - - - - - - - (1.200)
Change in fair value for HHEERERL
avallable-for-sales ATERD
financial assets - - (1,377) - - - - - - (1,377)
At 1 January 2006 [restated)  R=BEAE-A-B(E) 258 - (131 6039 894 3612 679 48963 3054 68,238
Transfer to reserves BRZGEE - - - - - 191 191 (382) - -
Profit for the year REEET - - - - - - - 15563 351 5,598
Change in fair value for HEHESREEL
avallable-for-sales ATERD
financial assets = = 345 = = = = = = 345
Reversal of share-based KA EERE
payment reserve (205) - - - - - - - - (205)
At 31 December 2006 RZBBRE+ZA=1-8 5 - (1,082) 6,039 894 3,803 6,986 64,144 3,089 83,976
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26. RESERVES (continued) 26.f# & (&)
The Company VNN
Available-
for-sales
Share-based Held to financial
payment maturity  assets reserve
reserve reserve it Capital  Contribution Retained
R K2 HESH reserve surplus ganings Total
WES1 N A BEff EXfifs EaRe REEF &it
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETT AREBTR ARETT ARETT ARETR ARETT ARETR
At 1 January 2005 RZEERE-A-H - 5,500 - 894 28,011 (205) 34,200
Effect of adopting new Ripsre s g
accounting policy LR2
- HKAS 39 - BB 8RR H30% - 7,200 - - - - 7,200
- HKFRS 2 -EENBREEN R 258 - - - - - 258
Reversal of avalable-for-sales HETHHEECRAER
financial assets upon disposal BE - (6,500) = = = - (5,500)
Net logs for the year AEEBRFE - - - - - (1,57) (1,571)
At 31 December 2005 R-EFRET-A=1-H 258 7,200 - 894 28,011 (1,776) 34,587
Opening adjustment of BAEHEE05
HKAS 39 e - (7,200) - - - - (7,200)
Change in fair value for EEESREEY
available-for-sales financial assets AFEEE - - (1377) - - - (1377)
At 1 January 2006 (restated) RZEENE-R-H (&) 258 - (1,377) 894 28,011 (1,776) 26,010
Reversal of share-based RANFEERR
payment reserve (205) - - - - - (205)
Change in fair value for avallable-  JHHEESBEE Y
for-sales financial assets INSEL &) - - 345 - - - 345
Net profit for the year REREH - - - - - 1,151 1,151
At 31 December 2006 RZBEXET-A=1-H 53 = (1,082) 894 28,011 (625) 27,301

127



128

BERBEEARAE —FTNFFH

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
GREMEB B RM:E

For the year ended 31 December 2006 R_-_ZZ A F+_-_A=+—H

26. RESERVES (Continued) 26.f#1# (&)

Statutory reserve

As stipulated by the relevant PRC laws and regulations,
the subsidiaries of the Company established in the PRC
shall set aside 10% of its net profit after taxation for the
statutory surplus reserve fund until the reserve balance
has reached 50% of the subsidiaries’ registered capital.
The transfer to this reserve must be made before
distribution of a dividend to shareholders. The reserve
fund can only be used, upon approval by the board of
directors and by the relevant authority, to offset
accumulated losses or increase capital.

Statutory enterprise expansion fund

As stipulated by the relevant PRC laws and regulations,
the subsidiaries of the Company established in the PRC
shall appropriate 5% or 10% of its net profit after taxation
as the statutory enterprise expansion fund. The director
shall have discretion in determining the percentage within
the range specified by the relevant PRC laws and

regulations.

Special fund

The special reserve represents the differences between
the nominal value of the shares of VP (BVI), the company
which was the holding company of other members of the
Group prior to the Group Reorganisation, and the nominal
value of the Company’s shares issued thereof pursuant

to the Group Reorganisation.

REABTBEIEGISOERZRE - ARER
TEKZZHBARASERBRKEMLERNZ
10%BAEEBRFERES  BERBER
ZMB R B EMARA50% © MARR 7 AR
B AR EERALN - FHRESETR
DIRSH Rt BESIBMER - HAKEFS
RAAREME L

EELEBREES

REABEHEAGIRZEZRZRE @ ARFR
FREKZZHBERARARERBRAEN 2
5%FHN10%EAEZELERRES - EFH
RIBEA BT BDAGI SRR R E 2 SE MR
BEEADL -

BRESE

FrlfE#EEREVP BV (SEEENAEER
R B AR 2 IR AT B ip E{E M AR F
RESESEMBTZROEEMERZE
B o
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26. RESERVES (Continued) 26.f#1# (&)

Capital reserve

The capital reserve represents the additional contributions
made by the shareholders of the Company prior to the
listing of the Company’s shares on the Stock Exchange
and the additional contributions made by the minority
shareholder of a subsidiary of the Company during the
year.

Contributed surplus

The contributed surplus of the Company represents the
difference between the net assets of the subsidiaries and
the nominal amount of the Company’s shares issued in
exchange thereof pursuant to the Group Reorganisation.

The Company’s reserves available for distribution to its
shareholders comprise share premium, capital reserve,
contributed surplus and accumulated (loss)/profit which
in aggregate amounted to RMB27,301,000 (2005
restated: RMB26,010,000). In accordance with the
Company’s Articles of Association, dividends shall be
payable out of the profit or other reserves, including the
share premium account, of the Company and, under the
Companies Law (2002 Revision) of the Cayman Islands,
the Company must be able to pay its debts as they fall
due in the ordinary course of business immediately
following the distribution of dividend.

BEXRfEE
BAEE R AR B BIRN AR 7] B

R EMAIAEZBINEE - AR R A
BRALVERRNFEAMIERINIE -

BB

il

ARBZEGRBRENBARZEERE
RARBIREEBEEHZHTUER R Z R
HEMERZZHE -

AARAHDSETRREZFEREBERMD R
B  EARE  ERRBRER (BER) &
A B EAREE27,301,000C (ZEEREF
B2 : AR#26,010,0007T) ° RIEARA A
EHER  BNZRBEAARAGAE
fhFEER R (BERORER) o I - 1B
BRESHEZATEA(ZTEE_FE:TMHR) ¢
RAREEZERERE Z21& - XA
BEKTIHAZEE -
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27.EARNINGS PER SHARE

(a) Basic earnings per share

(b)

The calculation of the basic earnings per share is
based on the profit attributable to ordinary equity
shareholders of the Company for the year of
RMB15,563,000 (2005:
RMB5,644,000) and the weighted average number
of 360,000,000 (2005: 360,000,000) ordinary shares
of the Company in issue during the year.

approximately

Diluted earnings per share

The calculation of the diluted earnings per share for
the year is based on the profit attributable to ordinary
equity shareholders of the Company for the year of
RMB15,563,000 (2005:
RMB5,644,000) and the weighted average number
of 375,900,000 (2005 restated: 375,060,000) ordinary
shares after adjusting for the effect of the dilutive

approximately

potential ordinary shares to be issued to the exercise
of the options granted under all relevant Share Option
Schemes as detailed in note 28 below of 15,900,000
(2005 restated: 15,060,000) shares, calculated as
follows:

1. Profit attributable to ordinary equity shareholders
of the Company (diluted)

21. 8 R & F

(a) BREZXER

(b)

BREARBFNGTEIERFARAA
TBERBRELERZNOARK
15,563,000 (ZZEZTHF : ARK
5,644,0007T) K F AR R A B #E17E M@
R% hn#E < 5 i% £1360,000,0000% (= Z
A : 360,000,0000%) °

SREERR

BREERFNAENDERFRALRAA
TBRBRELERZNOARK
15,563,000 (ZZE TR F : ARK
5,644,000t ) KX i i A% 0 #& F 19 A 2
375,900,000 (—ZEZEHFEEF :
375,060,0000%) © EFt#E FEITHEE
BELBREITEEABERESS TR
EEEREN R (FF R T XK x28)
15,900,000l (Z = T 1 F & ¥l :
15,060,0004%) fEH A% « 5T E M T :

1. ARAIEBRREEN T (BF)

2006 2005
—EEXRE ZETRHF
RMB RMB
AR% T AR T
Profit attributable to ordinary & @A AR &
equity shareholders JE A5 % A 15,563,000 5,644,000




360,000,000

15,900,000

15,900,000

375,900,000
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28. SHARE OPTION SCHEME

The Company operates two share option schemes,
namely Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme and the Share
Option Scheme as defined in directors’ report and herein.
A share option scheme was adopted and approved by
the sole shareholder of the Company on 31 March 2003,
pursuant to which the Company granted certain share
options to employees, directors and other participants
prior to the listing of the Company on the GEM of the
Stock Exchange (the “Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme”).
Another share option scheme was also adopted and
approved by the shareholders of the Company on 23
May 2003. ( the “Share Option Scheme”)

Both share option schemes will be valid for a period of
ten years commencing from 23 May 2003 pursuant to a
written resolution of the shareholders passed on 23 May
2003 for the primary purpose of providing incentives or
rewards to directors and eligible employees and other
participants. Under both schemes, the Company may
grant options to eligible employees and directors of the
Company and its subsidiaries, to subscribe for shares in
the Company. In addition, under the Share Option
Scheme, the Company may, from time to time, grant
share options to any contractor, supplier, customer, agent
or advisor, of the Group at the discretion of the Board of
Directors.

A nominal consideration of HK$1 is payable upon
acceptance of the grant of the options, The option has
no vesting period and each option gives the holders the
rights to subscribe for one ordinary share in the Company.

28 08 IR fE 5T 8

ARBETMBERKETS - NERAFAE
PRl R B N Bt 8 (EBRES
ERERAR) - ARAHE-RENR_FZF
== A=t BEARIE - RBERES
g - Bt NAFREARBRE R FIEIFER
LHAAER  EEREMBEERRET
BREE(TERARAERABRESS]) - K
RABRRR-_ZZ=FRAA-_T=BHMHK
B S —THBROER &) ([RBRERE) -

BERERNR-_ZZT=FRA-_T=BBBEZ
EEORZESR - MIERBBER 8 2 RAF I
BE-ZT=FRA-_t=HETF  EE
ZEANRAES  AEREEREMSESE
RURBHER - RIFBZMEATE - AT
ARARARENBARAEREERES
REBRE - URBARXRRD 5 - K
REIAIRIBEERET S RETERNETER
AEBEAAMNE  HER TP KL=
B[ 1% M R A -

KBREIBTAREABERER M - B
PerEdt EmERE ) - SEBUER TR B ARE
—RARBEBIZERN o
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28. SHARE OPTION SCHEME (Continued) 28. B IR FEST & ()

Terms and conditions of the options granted and existed FERBEERIFEZBIRE 2GR RAGHE -
at year end are as follows:

Number of
instruments Exercisable period
IREZE THEH
Options granted to directors
BYTEE 2 BRE
—on 20 June 2003 7,200,000 20 June 2003 - 19 June 2013
—-R-_EE=FA=+H —EE=FNA-_t+tHE-_ZET—=FAt+N1H
—on 2 March 2005 1,080,000 2 March 2005 — 1 March 2015
—RZEERF=H=H LT RF=A-HE-ZT—HRF=H—H
—on 10 August 2006 1,116,000 10 August 2006 — 30 August 2016
—-RZEEFNA+H —EERFNATHE-_ZE—X"FENA=TH
Options granted to employees
KTEBE ZERE
—on 20 June 2003 4,320,000 20 June 20083 - 19 June 2013
—RZEE=FHA=+H —EE=FARNA-_tHE-_ZE—=%,At+ANA8
—on 2 March 2005 812,000 2 March 2005 - 1 March 2015
—R-_ZFEERAF=A_H —EERAF=-A-HE_ZE—RF=A—H
—on 14 December 2005 288,000 14 December 2005 — 13 December 2015
- RZEZERF+ZA+WEAH —EERF+_AtTHEBE-_ZE—RF+=-A+=H
—on 10 August 2006 2,592,000 10 August 2006 — 9 August 2016
—-RZEEFNA+H —EERFNATEHEZE=_ZE—X"FENANH
17,408,000
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28. SHARE OPTION SCHEME (Continued)

R-TEAF+-A=+—8

28. BT A (&)

(@) The number and weighted average exercise prices of

share options are as follows:

() BIESE MMEFHITEERT :

2006 2005
= —TTRF
Weighted Weighted
average Number average Number
exercise prices of options exercise prices  of options
pilIg: hnE
FHITEE BREHAB F1TEE BIREHRE
HK$ HK$
BT & TT
Outstanding at the beginning  4F ] i A& 77 &
of the year 0.52 16,660,000 0.35 11,520,000
Granted during the year FRKE 0.36 4,118,400 0.52 5,140,000
Lapsed during the year F R K 0.48 (3,370,400) = =
Outstanding at the end
of the year FRMARITE 0.36 17,408,000 0.52 16,660,000
Exercisable at the end
of the year FRAITE 0.36 17,408,000 0.52 16,660,000

The weighted average share price at the date of

exercise for shares options exercised during the year

was HK$0.52 (2005: HK$0.40).

A supplementary agreement has signed that certain

conditions should be fulfilled before exercising the

options.

The options outstanding at 31 December 2006 had
an exercise price of HK$0.36 (2005: HK$0.52) and

weighted average remaining contractual life of 8 years

(2005: 9 years).

FARADITEZBRERITEB B2 e
FHREROLS2ZBE T (ZEZETRHF -

0.407 7T)

o

E LI BRI TE R AEK 2B T IR
VAN

REZBZERNF+_-_A=+—HBHER{TE
BRiEZITFEEAR036BITL(ZETR
F:0528TL) HNMEFEHFKED
FHASF (ZZTTRF : 9F) o
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28. SHARE OPTION SCHEME (Continued)

(b) The estimated fair value of the options is measured
based on Black-Scholes Model. The variables input

28. [ MR RESHE (&)

(o) WIREZ i ATENEN AR - §8
T AR o St AR B

into the model are as follows: T
2006 2005
— —TTRF

Weighted average share price Rt = BB 2 nEFHRE HK$0.53 HK$0.49
at measurement date 0.53/%& T 0.497 7T

Weighted average exercise price INEEFEHITEE HK$0.52 HK$0.52

0.525% T 0.528 7T

Expected volatility (expressed as TE 8RR 1R (R = — 42.1% 42.1%
weighted average volatility A RHT A BRI LA
used in the modeling 2 N S 15 0% 18 1 7R )
of Black-Scholes Model)

Option life (expressed as BAREAE (RmE = — 10 years 10 years
weighted average life used in the A RHT A E BRI A 104 104
modeling of Black-Scholes Model) 2 I 158 HEB R)

Expected dividends TEHAAR B NIL NIL

Risk-free interest rate 1 [ fix A1) B 3 4.3% 3.9%

Weighted average fair value REtE BBz NEFEH A FE HK$ 0.31 HK$0.31
at measurement date 0.31%8 T 0.31/8 7T

The expected volatility is based on historical volatility
(calculated based on the weighted average remaining life).
Expected dividends are based on historical dividends.
Changes in the subjective input assumptions could
materially affect the fair value estimate.

Share options were granted under a service condition.
The condition has not been taken into account in the
grant date fair value measurement of the services
received. There were no market conditions associated
with the share options granted.

R E R AR BB E 2R IE (AN F 19 R
HEMGE)  FAHREREENKREF
B -IBRABRIEDAREATERT
(EPAT

BRE 2 BRI AT A RBIEN - ZIGMHLR
MAFERBRL A ERBZAFE - L&
SR EREBRERR -
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e WE R RMRE

For the year ended 31 December 2006 R_-_ZZ A F+_-_A=+—H

29.NON-CASH TRANSACTIONS

During the year ended 31 December 2006, work-in-
progress of RMB6,262,000 (2005: RMB301,000) was

transferred to new drug technology.

The disposal proceeds of the associate, /& & 2% &l X %A
L2 8 35 BT B R A &, of RMB1,000,000 was booked as
other receivables at year end, which was settled
subsequently in January 2007 resulting in a non-cash

nature transaction.

30.PLEDGE OF ASSETS

At 31 December 2006, the Company and the Group had
pledged its available-for-sales financial assets of
RMB19,248,000 (2005 restated: RMB19,698,000) to a
bank to secure bank overdraft granted to the Group.
There is no utilisation of the general banking facilities as

at 31 December 2006.

31. OPERATING LEASE COMMITMENTS

At the balance sheet date, the Group had commitments
for future minimum lease payments under non-cancellable
operating leases in respect of land and buildings which

fall due as follows:

29.FREXRSH

HE_ZZXFE+_A=+—HILEFE &
g2 A R#6,262,000T (ZEEHEF :
AR #301,0007T) & 8 B & # B R i o

e E R REEERRAEY R EMER
AR FT1S R A R %1,000,0007T J5 1A F 4
APfEEMEUREAREREER =TT+
F-ABENRIEFBRSUEERS -

30.EHEHAEE

31

RZZFEZAF+ZA=1+—8H ' ARF KA
SEEERAHFEESREEARK
19,248,000 (Z TR F (7)) : ARK
19,698,0007T) * MERBE T AEEIRITE
2B R—TTEXRE+_A=1+—8 -
WS A ER —RIRITEE °

SEEHENEE

REH A - AEEIRET T HEE LR
BRI R T 2 kRS R B
-

2006 2005

—EERE —EELF

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®BT ARETT

Within one year 2,492 2,730
More than one year —FHUEERFER

but within five years 9,014 9,874

Over five years 5,686 4,337

17,192 16,941
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For the year ended 31 December 2006

31.

32.

R-TEAF+-A=+—8

OPERATING LEASE COMMITMENTS (Continued)

Operating lease payments represent rentals payable by
the Group for its laboratories premises located at 1t 7 /8
BREOEESHSN - LRBEEABEAEKI735% - B8O
MEBKBand EREERE KD 1395 11E110% o
Leases are negotiated for an average term of ten years
(2005: ten years) and rentals are fixed for the lease term.

RETIREMENT BENEFITS SCHEME

The Group contributed to a local municipal government
retirement scheme for all qualified employees in the PRC.
The employer and its employees are each required to
make contributions to the scheme at the rates and ceiling
specified in the PRC rules. The only obligation of the
Group with respect to the retirement scheme is to make
the

Contributions to the schemes are charged to the income

required contributions under the scheme.
statement as incurred. No forfeited contribution is
available to reduce the contribution payable in the future

years.

The total cost charged to income statement of
approximately RMB576,000 (2005: RMB1,136,000)
represents contributions payable to the scheme by the
Group during the year.

31.

32.

REHENEE B

KEMHORIBREASEHE  AREYE
(RIEREEREEFES SIS  ILREE
KBAEAE1735% /80 MIESAE A &L
FEESREZAKO1395F1E110E) Z B
He HAFHEHEEEATE (ZEER
F:4F) MEABRZEBLTEE -

iR K18 A 5t &8

AEBRAAETEAERERRELHBA
RGBSR - B RIEBHAERT BEES
ZHELRERBRGEELHR - AEE
SRR B 2 E—BEERREAEELRTE
R FHEMREEERBEREROR -
AR W AT A EFRCR R F 2 FE A

TR e

EUW R 8H Z2 B A4 A R ¥ 576,0007T
—“TEEZRF : AR®1,136,0007T) © EA
EEFAFEEMN ZHR -
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33.CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

(@) During the year, the Company had the following
significant transactions with certain related parties
which also deemed to be connected persons as
defined by the Rules Governing the Listing of
Securities on the GEM:

B.HEEXS

@ ARABARFREETHEREAL (RAK
RIBRIFRE S EMRAZ ERWEANE
BEAL) ZERR ST :

Name of
connected person Nature 2006 2005
EREALTRE ME —EEXRE —ZETRF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T T ARET T
VP Inc. Revenue

I 2=
— Contracted researc
development, ph

h and

armaceutical

application, registration and

testing services

564 357

—BEFAOMERFEE -

RERE - if

Ko 3R 3 BR 7

The above transactions were carried out in
accordance with the terms agreed by both parties.

Balances with these related parties as at 31
December 2006 are set out in note 21.

LR B TIRE T 1 E 2 IRFRETT ©

ZFERF+-_A=+—HB &2
BZERBEALZA ﬁ%ﬁﬁéﬁﬁimo
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33.CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

(b) Outstanding balances with related parties:

For the purpose of Group’s expansion in drugs
development, on 4 March 2004, the Group entered
into an agreement with Hainan Pioneer
Pharmaceutical Ltd (“Hainan Pioneer”), an unlisted
investment (note 17) of the Group for construction of
production plant in Hainan. The total consideration
was RMB3,740,000. RMB3,240,000 was paid 15
days after signing the agreement. The remaining
RMB500,000 was paid upon completion. However,
the production plant was registered in the name of
Hainan Pioneer and the Group has the right to use
for 20 years without further charges. Further
agreement would be signed if the production plant is
continuous to be used by the Group in future. Such
balance was included in unlisted investment as at 31
December 2006.

BHERE (#)

(o) BEREALTZREESR -

RASEEREYBRE  R_ZETNHEF
= AmAE NEEEEIFEWRE (K
&£ 17) Hainan Pioneer Pharmaceutical
Ltd ([Hainan Pioneer]|) 5t 1A /8 m A H3#
SEBEIUHE BREAARE
3,740,0007T * BN FEAT &L 16K X
it A R#3,240,0007T > 825 A R #&
500,0007C E R TR X - o AT - &
= 8% B A Hainan Pioneer2 & & & &2
REBBREFER20FMBAZ T EE
— B MARAEEFEERZE
ERE - AIEEIE— Pz - Bl
EREHRTAZTEENF T A=+—
HZzIELMIRER o
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33.CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS (Continued)
(c) Key personnel management:

Remuneration for key personnel management,
including amount paid to the Company’s directors
and certain of the highest paid employee, as disclosed
in note 10, is as follows:

IBBEXRZ (#)
() EEEBRAS:
MEIOMBBEEERABZME (2
z

RENARAREERETESHES
FRIE) W

2006 2005
—RBAE -TTIF
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR TR ARETT

Salaries and allowances e MoEE 715 447
Share-based payment expenses I 1~ 7 FA &% (205) 258
510 705

34. GOVERNMENT GRANTS

During the year, the Group received RMB14,000 of
government subsidy (2005: RMB291,000) towards the
research and development projects.

4. BT ER

F - AEBFE X FHEEE B WENBRATHE
B AR 14,0000 (ZEZTRF : ARK
291,0007T) °
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35. CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

A wholly-owned foreign subsidiary of the Company, 1t &
B2 B ERNFE AR AR, was incorporated on 8 May 2004
in the High Technology Scientific Zone (7 B8 #7 &l £ & &)
in Beijing in PRC. It had obtained the High Technology
Enterprise Approval Certificate issued by 1t 3/ &} £ 5;
fitZ B € first on 17 June 2004, which was then renewed
on 8 August 2006 for another two years. Under the
relevant PRC tax regulations, it should be able to enjoy a
preferential enterprise income tax rate of 15% upon
application and entitle a two years full exemption and
followed by a three years tax half reduction from its first
year of making profit after making good of accumulated
losses.

The application for the preferential tax treatment
mentioned above from PRC state tax authority is still in
process, however, management has confident that such
approval should be obtained very soon in the second
quarter of 2007 and considers the prepaid income tax
amount as required by local tax authority in 2006
amounting to approximately RMB952,000 can be
refundable and enterprise income tax will be exempted
both for 2005 and 2006. Management therefore has not
made any enterprise income tax provision for its first two
years operation other than above-mentioned prepaid
income tax. This income tax was calculated on the basis
of 33% income tax rate as agreed with local tax authority
and paid in April 2006 for the year of assessment of
2005.

3B HAREE

ARBZEHRAENIENBARIIERESE
EMBERARR-_ZETNFRAANRES
Bt RPN R R EREMRKL - ZRAFE
BIERmHERMZEER —TTMF A
TERERBRESHRMEERE - XN
ZERENANBEPME - RETEEH
BIEER  ZARKRFAIZZEBLER
£16% - WHHABRBEERRNEEENF
EE BREFIMFEHAREUNRBR=F
T TR =

MAPBEERBEEEES LA EERERFBIE
A RBNEETT - A - EEERER
BXRRARZZBZLFE_FTEERS I
RAM G HIEHBN - BT NFEEBRI
TER PSR A A KRB 952,0007T Al R E -
B RFR T NEFNREMSEHY
AEHRE - Al BB EXFRFEMTER
Hh - BERERARERFEESEEREMLE
FRiSELB A - FTiS 7 Tk B b 75 758 745 1 B 2%
EZBUMEAERNR =T FNAF=
SEIRMFEEM A -
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35.

36.

37.

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES (Continued)

However, the Company has not yet obtained any written
confirmation from local tax authority regarding the
approval of such preferential tax treatment up to the report
date. If management cannot obtain a written confirmation
from relevant tax authority, there is a contingent income
tax liability of up to a maximum of RMB2 million based
on corporate income tax rate of 33% applied to the
accumulated assessable profits carried at 31 December
2006 (approximately RMB6 million). This judgement is in
accordance with the audit opinion of its PRC statutory
auditors for both the year of assessments 2005 and 2006.

COMPARATIVE FIGURES

Certain comparative figures have been adjusted or
reclassified as a result of the correction of accounting
error in order to conform with current year’s presentation.
Further details are disclosed in note 2 to financial
statements.

APPROVAL OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The financial statements were approved and authorised
to issue by the board of directors on 27 March 2007.

B[b.HAEE (&)

AW BEAREEH > NRAHAREHT
BHEHARSTONERALEREREFEN
EEHER - WEEEELAARNGHAR
BSEABEMX  BR-_ZBERFT_A=
T—HERRERRT G2 EERBFRE
B3R E F  BEEZESEARK
2,000,000 Z K AAERAE - LB R T
BETBREEZEMM _ZTRFR_ZT
NEFEFERBZERER -

36.Lb BB T
ETHRHEFE RN LS HRMF LR

KBV URAARFZE2TR - AR
ABERPBERRME2RE -

37.#t A B A 3R 3k

EXECR_TSTRF-A-_ttBE#LER
BT RMBRE -



VENTUREPHARM LABORATORIES LIMITED Annual Report 2006

FIVE YEARS FINANCIAL SUMMARY

AFEME#BE

Year ended 31 December
BEt-A=+—-HLEE

2002 2003 2004 2005 2006
—TEF CZETT= —TTME ZTTHE CZEEBEXE
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT ARBTR AR%®Tr ARBTnt AR%Tx
Turnover ] 32,453 35,680 36,157 42,157 57,052
Profit before taxation BR %% Al & A1 19,550 21,994 11,480 6,403 18,773
Taxation I (237) (1,506) (881) (887) (3,175)
Profit after taxation before BB BB R DH
minority interests PR 34 % 1 v A 19,313 20,488 10,599 5,516 15,598
Minority interests DE AR R (186) (128) 84 128 (35)
Profit for the year after MER DB 2= 18
minority interest ZREEEF 19,127 20,360 10,683 5,644 15,563
ASSETS AND LIABILITIES EEREE
Year ended 31 December
BEt-A-t-HLEE
2002 2003 2004 2005 2006
e St -2 “2%=F e S —ZTRE ZEEXE
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB’000
ARETT ANEETFT ARETT ARETT N S
(Restated)
(Z31)
Total assets less current liabilties BEERTDAE 38,056 91,031 102,135 106,398 122,136
Minority interests PERFER (742) (870) (3,190) (3,054) (3,089)
Shareholders’ funds hx&¢ 37,314 90,161 98,945 108,344 119,047
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Notes to the financial summary:

1.

The results for each for the five years ended 31 December 2006
have been prepared on a combined basis to indicate the results of
the Group as if the Group structure, at the time when the Company’s
shares were listed on the Growth Enterprise Market of The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited, had been in existence throughout
the years concerned. The figures for the year ended 31 December
2002 has been extracted from the Company’s prospectus dated
30 June 2003. The results for each of the three years ended 31
December 2004, 2005 and 2006 have been extracted from the

corresponding audited annual financial statements.

The combined balance sheet as at 31 December 2002 has been
extracted from the Company’s Prospectus dated 30 June 2003.
This financial summary indicates the consolidated results of the
Company and its subsidiaries with effect from 1 January 2002 or
since their respective dates of incorporation or acquisition, whichever
is a shorter period. The consolidation balance sheets at 31
December 2002, 2003, 2004, 2005 and 2006 are the combination
of the balance sheets of the Company and its subsidiaries at 31
December 2002, 2003, 2004, 2005 and 2006. In the opinion of the
directors, the resulting consolidated financial statements give a more
meaningful view of the results and state of affairs of the Group as a
whole.

BB R MY

BE_TTAG+_A=+—ALABEEESZ
RHORRANIEEN  UETAREZ &R
AATRAEEEBAZSHAERL AL ER £
%E—Eﬁ&c#@3*§§*¢+*ﬂz+—a

EZBBREEE AR _TT=F A=+
EZKAE%&$&°EIZ§§E¢ —TTH
FR-BERNFT_A=ZTHLE=ZBAFERFZ

FEDRBA AR RERFRYHRE °

REFE_FH--_A=t—RAZAHEBEERARBRT)
%ﬁ@ﬁ%ﬁ7777¢mﬂ +EZ$ A&

:E—H—Eﬁ&%%EH%WIﬁW%E%U%
B RHAR) URZGEAFER - R_TT_F -
—ET=F . ZTTWF _ETRER-FERN
FT_A=+—RZBREERBARDNARARE
MEARR-ZZT_F  —_TZT=F —ZTTNQ
F ZZETEAFER-_TTANF+_A=+—HZE&
EBBERZE0H BFRR  aHEZEEHMBR
KEUMERAEE 2 FERERBAMR -
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